i EREEBRAA
VITASOY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LTD

Stock code 13X 8% 0345




fonez/eﬂ naturals

fane ver hedl 7‘{%

Vitasoy is renowned as a leading supplier of
products made of soybeans that are natural,
healthy and nutritious. The smiling face gives a
healthy and sociable image that Vitasoy wishes
to project. Itis shaped like the globe which
signifies the globalised nature of Vitasoy's
business. The globe also shows Mainland China
and Australia, two of Vitasoy's major markets
with emerging potentials. The design gives the
overall impression that Vitasoy products can be
enjoyed anywhere, anytime and by anyone.
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SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESSES

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited

—  www.vitasoy.com (English & Chinese)

- www.vitasoy.com.hk (English & Chinese)

Vitaland Services Limited
— www.vitaland.com.hk (Chinese only)

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited
- www.hkgourmet.com.hk (Chinese only)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage
Company Limited

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited

—  www.vitasoy-chn.com (Chinese only)

Vitasoy USA Inc.
- www.vitasoy-usa.com (English only)

Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.
—  www.vitasoy.com.au (English only)

KEY DATES

Closure of Register

5th September, 2006 (Tuesday) to
11th September, 2006 (Monday)

Annual General Meeting

at 3:00 p.m., 11th September, 2006 (Monday),
Chater Rooms | & I, Function Room Level,

The Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong,

3 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Final and Special Dividends Payable
21st September, 2006 (Thursday)
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Financial Highlights
B REE

Year Ended 31st March #EZ=A=+—HI-FE

2006 2005 %
Results #% HK$Mn HK$Mn Change
BYEET BERET 28)
Turnover B 2,520 2,380 5.9
Gross Profit EF 1,481 1,368 8.3
EBITDA RetFE - BHIE - & 333 281 18.5
R#HE AR AT
Profit Attributable to Equity RATIRIEREE A 172 121 421
Shareholders of the Company AR
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) &RERZF GEL) 17.2 12.2 41.0
Dividends per Share (HK cents)* A% S (&L # 19.5 18.5 5.4
# Including special dividend * BRI R
At 31st March ®=A=+—H
2006 2005 %
Financial Position Mﬁﬂkﬁ HK$Mn HK$Mn Change
BYEET BERET E)
Total Assets wmEE 1,799 1,796 0.2
Net Cash Balance REFEE 398 364 9.3
Total Equity Attributable to Equity ~ ANARI&#ERE A 1,250 1,248 0.2
Shareholders of the Company el A EE
Turnover & %%§ Gross Profit £F

Year Ended 31st March #E=A=+—HI-FE

HK$Mn BHE ST

Year Ended 31st March #E2=A=+—HI-FE

HK$Mn BH B ST

06 I 2,520
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05 I, 2, 380

05 I (368

04 I 2,269

04 I 1,288

03 I, 2 228

03 I 1,245
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02 I 1,207

EBITDA R&FHFIE ~ BB - HEREBHEERARF

Year Ended 31st March #E=A=+—HI-FE

HK$Mn B#E ST

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
KAARERE ARMGEEA

Year Ended 31st March §#EZ=A=+—HIFE
HK$Mn BHE ST
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Sales Analysis by Categories $5% 2 #1 (3REH8)

Year Ended 31st March #Z=A=+—HILFE

Soymilk 39%
S
Tea 25%

30
4% \
%
7% 'E)fu 8%
SE
Lunch Boxes and Snacks 8%
FRESR/IR
Milk 7%
447
| Water 6%
K
~ Juice Drinks 4%
Rk
3%

Others
Hith

Ny

Sales Analysis by Location of Customers $§% 247 (REE R AT fE ith)

Year Ended 31st March #Z=A=+—HI-FE

Hong Kong 64%
B

North America 17%
JEEM

Australia and New Zealand 8%
SN R FTAa R

Mainland China 7%
B ARE

Others 4%
Hith
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no matter where you are
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

It gives me much pleasure to report that for the year ended
31st March, 2006, the Group recorded a profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$172 million,
up 42.1% from fiscal 2004/2005. Total turnover increased
by 5.9% year-on-year to HK$2,520 million. The Group’s gross
profit for the year was HK$ 1,481 million, up 8.3%. Earnings
per share were HK$0.172, compared to HK$0.122 recorded
for the previous year.

The Board of Directors is recommending a final dividend of
HK6.7 cents per share at the upcoming Annual General
Meeting on 11th September, 2006. This, together with the
interim dividend of HK2.8 cents per share, will mean that the
Group’s total dividend for fiscal 2005/2006 will be HK9.5
cents per share (2004/2005 total dividend: HK8.5 cents per
share). On top of that, given the Group’s business
performance and strong cash position, the Board is
recommending a special dividend of HK10.0 cents per share
(2004/2005 special dividend: HK10.0 cents per share). This
marks the fourth consecutive year that a special dividend is

$/\ﬁ7\7)‘l:¥& $%@§:_gg/\¢ H +
—E¢¢f2$ﬂﬂ%%HﬁAﬁmmﬂ%@%
172,000,0007t * M= ZW " —ZE T RERF
EgMMzméd@%%$&¢JEMB9%§%%
2,520,000,0007T ° NEBEARFE 2 EF BB
1,481,000,0007C * 1#08.3% » B EF| &EE
0.1727C » EFRIAB0.1227T ©

%Aﬂ—rﬁ/\_ EENFNAT—HETZREA
FARE FEZIRE AR EZEL6.7(L - #EF
Bk 2 R EARR BB B2 .81l - BEARERER
—ETH/ = zvﬁﬁﬁirziimgﬂﬁk
th&%9ﬂmf77@/ THFERER

C SRS S5{L) o %%'%#$E@zﬁ%
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s FREE10.01L) - EERALEEE
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being paid, which speaks strongly for the Group’s
commitment and capabilities to deliver higher value to
shareholders.

I am also glad to report that, with effect from 30th November,
2005, the Company has become a constituent stock of MSCI
HK Small Cap Index.

GENERAL REVIEW

The operating environment as a whole continued to improve
in 2005, which was conducive to business growth and
development. Taking advantage of the improved conditions
in its major markets, the Group was able to implement its
focused business strategies worldwide and achieve better
financial results than the year before. In line with the economic
performance and hence demand growth of our major
markets, particularly Hong Kong, sales growth was stronger
in the second half than the first half of the year. The Group’s
profitability also improved with the increase in sales and
disciplined cost control. It should be noted that the Group’s
performance in Mainland China and Australia and New
Zealand was particularly impressive during the year.

a\

The Group was able to implement its
focused business strategies worldw
achieve better financial results than the

year before. -
ﬁ%ﬁéiﬁ%mﬁﬁéibiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ ’
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brands.
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In Hong Kong, the economy maintained its upward trend
and registered a strong GDP growth of 7% in 2005. More
importantly this growth was broad-based, resulting directly
in the improvement of the job market and a general rise in
household income. These positive trends have fuelled
domestic consumption and therefore created a more buoyant
retail sector. The non-alcoholic beverage sector also benefited
to a certain extent. Profiting from the relatively positive market
environment and continuing with our proactive and innovative
approach in product development, marketing and brand
building as well as process improvement, we were rewarded
with higher sales. Sales in the Hong Kong market rose by
3.9%. Our export business conducted through Hong Kong
also expanded steadily as a result of our market and product
development efforts. Export sales were up by an encouraging
14.5% year-on-year. Our tuck shop and catering businesses
run by Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet
Limited respectively also witnessed stable growth in turnover
and have maintained high market shares.

The North American soyfood market experienced a mixed
performance last year. While the water-packed tofu category
continued to grow and gain popularity among consumers,
the aseptic soymilk category kept declining in volume terms.
Vitasoy USA's rationalisation exercise was completed last year
and we could move ahead full steam with business
development. We have been actively repositioning our
products towards “healthy eating made delicious and
convenient”. At the same time, we succeeded in growing
and reinforcing our market leadership in the water-packed
tofu category. Total revenue dropped after the exit of some
unprofitable products, but should these be excluded, our US
revenue actually had a slight growth of nearly 2.0%. More
importantly, in line with our expectation, operating loss
narrowed further whereas gross profit margin improved.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06

We will achieve steady growth in both
sales and profit by capitalising on our
brand portfolio and investing in our
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The performance of our Mainland China operation was strong

on the back of the healthy growth of the domestic economy.
By continuing to implement the focused strategy of “core
business, core brand and core competency”, we succeeded
in achieving more efficient product distribution with better
outlet management, particularly in southern China. A very
encouraging growth of 28.6% in revenue was recorded from
domestic sales in the Mainland China market. Our brand
building initiatives in this market were also bearing fruit with
higher brand awareness and higher consumer off-take.

In terms of growth, the Group’s operation in Australia and
New Zealand was the star performer of fiscal 2005/2006.
Riding on its growth momentum since the previous year and
driven by intense marketing efforts, our revenue and profit
derived from these two markets soared by 37.2% and
160.0% respectively. In addition to boosting sales through
innovative marketing and successful product launches, we
also attained the goal of gaining market share. The sales
performance and prospects of these markets have been so
encouraging that we have already commenced an expansion
programme for the Wodonga plant in order to meet the
demand for both existing and new products.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Going forward, while we believe the operating environment
as a whole should remain basically stable, we will not
underestimate the impact of various uncertainties, including
the rise in the prices of oil and raw materials, inflation, volatile
interest rates and the general increase in staff remuneration.
All these will exert an upward pressure on operating costs.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

We remain committed to maximising shareholder value and
being customers’ preferred choice. To ensure higher value
for our shareholders and consumers, we will continue to
pursue a market-driven and customer-oriented strategy by
focusing on brand building, product innovation, aggressive
marketing and promotion as well as the exploration of new
business opportunities as a means for generating higher
revenue and profit. We will also maintain disciplined cost
control by achieving higher cost-efficiency across the board,
not least in production and distribution.

Hong Kong

The prospects of the Hong Kong economy are expected to
remain upbeat and unemployment should stay at a low level,
though a certain degree of consolidation is likely after the
boom in the recent past. There is some consensus in the
market that the pace of GDP growth would slow down. At
the same time, we should be mindful that inflation will be a
challenge for cost management while there is still no sign
that price competition in the non-alcoholic beverage market
may subside.

In the coming year, our focus in Hong Kong is on achieving
steady growth in both sales and profit by capitalising on our
brand portfolio and investing in further strengthening of our
brands in order to capture a bigger market share. Our
attention will be devoted to product and packaging innovation
as well as marketing and promotion. We will continue to
invest in innovative and effective advertising campaigns to
drive sales and support the launching of new products. At

the same time, in view of looming inflationary pressure, we
will exercise prudent cost management on a continuous basis.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06
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On the question of brand building, while we will continue to
leverage the advantages inherent in our core brands, VITASOY
and VITA, we will also take advantage of the potential already
demonstrated by our new brands like CALCI-PLUS and VITA
TSING SUM ZHAN. These new members of our brand portfolio
are expected to grow and gain in popularity, especially among
the younger generation of consumers.

The Group’s tuck shops and meal box business still
demonstrate good prospects for further growth. Our focus
in the foreseeable future is to increase our share in these
markets through quality assurance and service enhancement.

North America

In North America, although the market for soy products is
unlikely to show significant improvement in the near future,
the demand for health products is on the rise as consumers
are becoming increasingly attuned to the concept of healthy
eating. The repositioning of Vitasoy USA is therefore most
timely as it allows us to go up-market by offering value-added
products that justify higher prices.

In the coming year, we will leverage our product innovation
capabilities to drive the sales of Tofu and consolidate our
market leadership in this category through new product
launches. At the same time, we will adopt the product
innovation approach as well as a flexible pricing strategy in
respect of Aseptic Soymilk to stimulate growth. All these
initiatives are to be supported by aggressive marketing and
promotion campaigns which, though having an initial impact

on net profit, are crucial for reinforcing our brands and
ensuring long-term gains.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Mainland China

The Chinese economy is expected to continue with its upward
trend in the foreseeable future. The general affluence of the
urban population will still be the chief stimulant for the growth
of domestic consumption.

The soymilk market in Mainland China is likely to remain soft
due to the fierce challenge from the dairy milk segment that
has been engaging in a nationwide price war in recent years.
The Chinese Government's policy of supporting rural
development would, however, imply more opportunities for
penetrating into the smaller cities and big towns. Our focus
will be on capturing these new business opportunities by
capitalising on our existing sales and marketing capabilities.
On the other hand, we will continue to profit from our success
in the co-packing business to ensure better utilisation of our
two production plants in Mainland China. We have already
taken the first step forward to make use of the opportunities
arising from CEPA (Closer Economic Partnership
Arrangements) by starting to import some products from
Hong Kong in the past few months. We will keep exploring
such opportunities in the coming years.

Australia and New Zealand

Given our successful marketing and pricing strategy as well
as the encouraging results achieved last year, we are confident
that Vitasoy Australia will sustain healthy growth in sales,
profitability and market share in the coming year. In order to
sustain the advantageous position we have built up in
Australia and New Zealand, we will devote ourselves to
reinforce the VITASOY's position as “the soy expert” by
developing and launching new products in the “value soy
beverage” area and also by introducing new flavours. As
mentioned earlier, we have already started implementing an
expansion plan in the Wodonga plant so as to equip ourselves
properly for future growth.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06
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We will devote ourselves to reinforce the

the “value soy beverage” area.
ZFEI;HTEFmEE*** L GRADARIE
ROk fEm
A o

In May, 2005, San Miguel Corporation, through its subsidiary
in Australia, acquired the controlling interest in National Foods
Limited, our joint-venture partner in Australia. The robust
growth experienced by the Group in this market in fiscal 2005/
2006 has demonstrated clearly that the said acquisition has
had no negative impact at all on our Australian and New
Zealand operation. We are optimistic that going forward, this
situation is unlikely to change.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Taking this opportunity, | would like to extend my thanks to
Mr. Chi-kian SHIU, Independent Non-executive Director, who
will retire as a Director at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting in September.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to welcome Mr. Jan P. S.
ERLUND, who joined as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 6th July, 2006. | am confident that
the Board will benefit from Mr. Erlund’s wealth of experience
and knowledge.

VOTE OF THANKS

I must thank the Board of Directors for their continued
guidance and support. | also wish to thank our shareholders
and customers for their trust and loyalty. Last but not least, |
wish to convey my heartfelt appreciation to our staff
worldwide for their commitment and industry that are crucial
for us as we move forward to excel ourselves and achieve
higher goals.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
6th July, 2006

VITASOY’s position as “the soy expert” by
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Management Report
BEEREE

TURNOVER

The Group’s total turnover for the fiscal year ended 31st
March, 2006 was HK$2,520 million, up 5.9% from HK$2,380
million registered in the preceding fiscal year. This growth
was made possible by the Group’s active implementation of
growth initiatives, including product innovation,
brand reinforcement, strengthening of distribution, and
global expansion.

Following a relatively modest growth of 2.3% in the first half
of the year, sales soared in the second half by 9.8%, which
was in line with the market growth trend and was also the
result of our strong marketing and promotion effort. The
performances of the Group’s Australian and New Zealand
operation and Mainland China operation were particularly
impressive. Positioned as “the soy expert”, Vitasoy Australia
continued to deliver remarkable sales performance, which
rose 37.2% to HK$214 million. The Mainland also saw
double-digit sales growth under our focused strategy of “core
business, core brand and core competency”. After a relatively
slow first half, Hong Kong regained its growth momentum
and achieved a sales growth of 10.0% in the second half.
Sales in North America declined by 6.0% due mainly to a
major restructuring project involving the exit of Refrigerated
Soymilk as well as the weaker demand for Aseptic Soymilk in
the US market. Should the exited products be excluded, sales
in this market would have registered a positive growth of
nearly 2.0%.
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GROSS PROFIT

Notwithstanding the rise in production costs, especially sugar
and energy costs, we managed to improve our gross margin
to 58.8% of sales, as compared to 57.5% a year before. The
Group's gross profit for the year totalled HK$1,481 million
(2004/2005: HK$1,368 million), an increase of 8.3%.

The higher gross margin reflected the effectiveness of the
Group's strategy to improve margins by continually
introducing value-added products, capitalising on our brand
portfolio and leveraging business volume growth. At the same
time, we have persisted in implementing our productivity
enhancement programmes and improving our supply chain
management.

OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group is committed to prudent cost management as a
means for sustaining profit growth. Owing primarily to the
need to drive sales growth, brand reinforcement and market
expansion, total operating expenses increased 8.0% to
HK$1,298 million. Marketing, selling and distribution
expenses were HK$985 million, up 7.5% due mainly to
increased marketing activities for strengthening our brands
and expanding our market share at the same time.
Administrative expenses amounted to HK$164 million, an
increase of 3.1%. Other operating expenses amounted to
HK$149 million, compared to HK$127 million last year. We
consider such increases well justified as we have continued
to deliver profit growth and higher dividend payouts. For

2005/2006, the Group’s total operating expenses amounted
to 51.5% of sales (2004/2005: 50.5%).
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OPERATING PROFIT AND EARNINGS BEFORE
INTEREST, TAXATION, DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION EXPENSES (EBITDA)

EBITDA for the year amounted to HK$333 million, up 18.5%
from HK$281 million a year earlier. With stringent cost
management measures and a programme for continuous
productivity improvement, we were able to sustain high
productivity by lifting our gross margin to 58.8% of sales.
Despite higher marketing and promotional expenses for
expanding market share and reinforcing market leadership,
we managed to grow our EBITDA margin to 13.2% of sales
(2004/2005: 11.8%). All these numbers speak for the success
of our focused business development strategy.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31st March, 2006, profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$172 million,
an increase of 42.1% from HK$121 million a year ago.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s financial position has remained very strong. As
at 31st March, 2006, the Group was in a healthy net cash
position of HK$398 million (31st March, 2005: HK$364
million). Banking facilities available to but not used by the
Group amounted to HK$367 million.

As at 31st March, 2006, the Group’s borrowings amounted
to HK$119 million (31st March, 2005: HK$169 million). The
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borrowings denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and
Australian dollars were the equivalents of HK$14 million,
HK$10 million and HK$95 million respectively. The maturity
profile of the borrowings is spread over a period of three
years, with HK$41 million repayable in the first year and
HK$78 million in the third year. The gearing ratio (total
borrowings/total equity attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company) was 9.5% (31st March, 2005: 13.5%).

The Group incurred capital expenditure totalling HK$64
million in 2005/2006 (2004/2005: HK$53 million), which was
primarily funded by cash generated from various operations.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2006, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$34 million (31st March, 2005:
HK$37 million) were pledged to secure loan facilities utilised
by subsidiaries.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial management focuses on controlled
management of risks, with transactions being directly related
to the underlying businesses of the Group. We operate a
central cash and treasury management system for all our
subsidiaries. Borrowings are normally taken out in local
currencies by the Group’s operating subsidiaries to fund and

partially hedge their investments.
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The financial risks faced by the Group are mainly connected
with interest rates and exchange rates. The Group makes use
of financial instruments, where appropriate, to manage those
risks. At the close of fiscal 2005/2006, the Group had no
significant exposure under foreign exchange contracts or
financial derivatives.

EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group is fully aware of the need to make the best use of
its manpower resources to maximise productivity and,
therefore, adopts a prudent approach with regard to
manpower. As at 31st March, 2006, the Group’s workforce
increased by 2.5% during the year with the number of full-
time staff increasing slightly to 2,361.

In terms of staff development, the Group continued to support
a wide range of skills training and staff development
programmes in Hong Kong, Mainland China, North America
and Australia, with a view to improving job-related
competencies and overall efficiency. The Group also
encouraged employees to attend external training and
education programmes, including MBA and other degree
courses, by offering financial sponsorship in accordance with
certain criteria.

The Group is also fully committed to ensuring the safety and
health of its employees. The safety and health committees
established in the Group’s various operations are responsible

for constantly improving safety and health in the workplace

consumers.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06

New members of our brand portfolio are
expected to grow and gain in popularity,
especially among the younger generation of

AEEERRIEASTNTREHENERREER
WEESEM  BRIREE —RAVEES °

REBFAES 2 B EREREN R RERE
e ARERFERFASR TATEZER
B R-TTR/ “ETRUMRFEFER K
SEYEABINEANINTESRTAZERX
R o

BE - BIRERE
REBFRNORBINERANERIGNEEN 2
FEM  BWRAANERERFERERE - RN
TEXFZA=+—H AEEZBETAHER
FRIEM2.5% EPE2BEEASEMAZ
2,361% °

EETIT#RENE  NEBEEITERE  1H
REE - AN BN F 10 2R 3 2 B IR B IEDI K
BT#RRZ - AR ETHTIERHZ KA
REBYE - AEBEMRIEE TENRHEED
e e B E 8 2 hoNE i 2 1 R 3B IR
BREIFEERT REMBMRIE -

AEETFEEIREZ TRLERER - I
BIEEBHHORBEIELEREFREE &
BETENE TIRibH 22 MERSE - BT
i TR R TR AR AT A - BIERRE IR e




by carrying out risk assessment of work sites regularly and by
establishing policies and guidelines for improvement and
taking corrective actions where necessary. Regular and
intensive training on safety and health is also provided
for staff.

The Group’s remuneration policies remained unchanged
during the year. The remuneration packages for the staff
(including the executive directors) that covered basic salaries,
discretionary bonuses, share options and other long-term
benefits were pegged to the performance of both the Group
and the individual employees, and were meant to reflect the
value generated by everyone during the year.

COMMUNITY SERVICE

In the year under review, the Group continued to fulfil its
responsibilities as a corporate citizen by participating in and
supporting various relevant organisations and activities, some
of which are highlighted below.

The Group continued to support university education through
various education bursaries. Vitasoy Hong Kong donated to
local charitable organisations, including the Corporate and
Employee Contribution Programme of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong. We also took part in the Oxfam Trailwalker
2005 for fundraising.

We sponsored a number of programmes related to health
and teenagers, including fun fairs of secondary schools,
orientation camps of universities, award schemes for
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promoting healthy eating at school and school charitable
walkathons. We also supported major fundraising events
staged by organisations such as Hong Kong World Vision,
Arts with the Disabled Association of Hong Kong, Salvation
Army Hong Kong, etc.. Vitasoy USA donated soymilk to
Hurricane Katrina Relief and Food Banks.

The Group was a participant in the School-Business Partnership
Programme of the Education and Manpower Bureau of HKSAR
Government to enhance students’ understanding of the
business sector by giving school talks and arranging student
tours and work attachments.

RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS

The Group received the Caring Company Award from the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service for providing a caring
environment for employees and demonstrating corporate

citizenship.

Vitaland Services Limited was given the Certificate of
Outstanding Performance by the Employees Retraining Board
for its active participation in employee retraining programmes.
Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited
were honoured with the Caring Employer Award and Caring
Employer Honorable Award respectively by the New Territories
Association Retraining Centre for providing job opportunities
for job seekers.

VITASQOY won the “Yahoo! Emotive Brand Award"” organised
by Yahoo! Hong Kong in the beverage category for the fourth
consecutive year. VITA received the Gold Award in the Juice
Category of Reader’s Digest Hong Kong Trusted Brands 2006.

Vitasoy Hong Kong was recognised by PARKNSHOP as Best

Supplier of the Year 2005 for sales performance, promotion
efforts and overall customer service.
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HONG KONG

Production Efficiency

By Location of Assets (Production Plants)
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Segment Result DEEE
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2005/2006 2004/2005

HK$million HK$million Movement
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1,419 1,331 6.6%
213 210 1.4%
463 458 1.1%

The Group’s production plant in Tuen Mun supports both
domestic sales and exports to markets in Europe, Macau,
Southeast Asia and the Americas. For the year ended 31st
March, 2006, the revenue generated by the plant and the
Group's tuck shop business reached HK$1,419 million, an
increase of 6.6% over the previous year. The segment result
for the year was HK$213 million (2004/2005:
HK$210 million).

Market Performance

By Location of Customers
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HONG KONG (continued)

(®

Hong Kong Domestic Market

The Hong Kong economy continued to flourish during
the year under review. Despite the adverse impact of
high oil prices and rising interest rates, a real GDP growth
of 7% was recorded in 2005 as solid export growth and
domestic demand continued to give impetus to economic
recovery. Under this basically positive environment, the
non-alcoholic beverage industry also saw a growth of
4% in value amidst intense competition.

Sales fell slightly in the first half of the year due to severe
price competition in the market, but we had a strong
rebound in the second half after readjusting our pricing
strategy to enhance our competitiveness and create
higher demand from our target customers. Sales in the
second half of the year rose by a substantial 10.0%. As
a result, total revenue from the Hong Kong market was
up 3.9% for the full year.

Product innovation was also a crucial factor for the
Group’s incremental growth. Targeting the kids and teens
segment, VITA SUPERICY Lemon Tea appeals to them
with its long-lasting icy sensation. The launch of the new
125ml single pack has been welcomed by the pre-teen
sector. Developed and marketed as healthy beverages,
CALCI-PLUS Soya Bean Oat Drink and VITA Hi-Calcium
Low Fat Milk Beverage have proved to be popular
amongst the health-conscious. New variants of VITA
TSING SUM ZHAN and VITA CHA T DIN have boosted
sales by meeting the taste preference of mass consumers.
This, together with our efforts in marketing and
distribution, has enabled us to reinforce our market
leadership in various beverage categories.
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HONG KONG (continued)

®
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Hong Kong Domestic Market (continued)

During the year, our tuck shop business and catering
business faced keen competition in the industry.
Although it was tougher than before to win tenders,
Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet
Limited have still maintained high market shares.
Supported by marketing activities and new products,
Vitaland achieved 9% sales growth. With the expansion
of new central kitchen facilities, Hong Kong Gourmet
achieved 25% in volume growth.

Export Markets

Our export sales sustained a healthy year-on-year growth
of 14.5%. The appointment of distributors for Central
and South American markets and the launching of new
products like VITA SUPERICY Lemon Tea Drink, CALCI-
PLUS Soya Bean Oat Drink and new variants of both VITA
CHA T DIN Tea Drink and VITA TSING SUM ZHAN Tea
Drink supported the growth. Sales growth in Macau was
outstanding, up 20%, driven mainly by the booming
economy, construction and gambling industries as well
as tourism.
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NORTH AMERICA

By Location of Assets (Production Plant)
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The Group’s production plant in Massachusetts supports the
North American market. During the year, the plant generated
HK$386 million in revenue, a decrease of 7.0%. The segment
result was an operating loss of HK$20 million, compared to
HK$37 million a year ago.

By Location of Customers
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During the year under review, the North American soyfood
market experienced a mixed performance. The US market for
water-packed tofu grew slightly by 1%. The whole market
for aseptic soymilk continued to contract as consumers shifted
their preference to refrigerated soymilk. The overall aseptic
soymilk category dropped 7% year-on-year.
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NORTH AMERICA (continued)

Fiscal 2005/2006 was the first full year of operation after the
Group’s rationalisation initiatives taken last year to exit from
the non-profitable Refrigerated Soymilk business and to
consolidate all production facilities at Ayer, Massachusetts.
We have been actively repositioning our products toward
“healthy eating made delicious and convenient”. We also
reorganised our sales team for greater focus on natural food
stores, supermarkets and national accounts. We have forged
new relationships with retailers and grown our core
businesses. Total revenue dropped after the exit of some
unprofitable products, but should these be excluded, our US
revenue actually had a slight growth of nearly 2.0%. More
importantly, in line with our expectation, operating loss
narrowed further whereas gross profit margin improved.

A notable achievement for us was that we succeeded in
growing and reinforcing our market leadership in the water-
packed tofu category. Our business grew substantially through
the development and launching of new products and
packages that helped stimulate sales. Vitasoy USA was in
fact the key driver of the national water-packed tofu market
growth. The sales of our NASOYA brand grew 4% and that
of our AZUMAYA brand 5%. On the other hand, despite the
contraction of the aseptic soymilk market, we maintained
our market share.
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MAINLAND CHINA

R ARE

By Location of Assets (Production Plants) 20::2396 20(;1;2(_)‘?5 Movement
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The Group’s production plants in Shanghai and Shenzhen REBZR BRI EERE B EHEFRE

support the Mainland China and Hong Kong markets. During
the year under review, the two HACCP-accredited plants
together generated HK$509 million in revenue, representing
an increase of 4.9%. Owing to an additional spending
investment of HK$9 million in marketing and brand-building
programmes, the segment result for the year was basically
the same as the previous year.
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growth of the dairy milk industry, which expanded in total BEMSIFELR - ERSHERRITERE -

market size. The soy beverage industry witnessed active
launches of new products and new brands in the low-cost
powder segment, which reflected rising demand in the low-
price segment, while competition in the ready-to-drink
category remained fierce.
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MAINLAND CHINA (continued)

The fiscal year under review was the second year for
implementing the focused strategy of “core business, core
brand and core competency” in Mainland China. Revenue
generated from this market was HK$171 million, an increase
of 28.6% over last year. We have rigorously pursued the core
city strategy and are glad to report that we have made good
progress in strengthening product distribution with better
outlet management in southern China. The investment in
the VITASOY brand also yielded higher brand awareness and
higher consumer off-take. Under the CEPA (Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangements), our product portfolio also
expanded into the family consumption segment through the
launching of products of one-litre pack imported from Hong
Kong.

During the year, we continued to pursue co-packing
opportunities for improving capacity utilisation and for better
return on assets. Through cooperative packaging agreements,
our plants in both Shenzhen and Shanghai improved
substantially in asset utilisation and operating efficiency.
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AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND

By Location of Assets (Production Plant)
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The Group’s joint-venture plant in Wodonga, Victoria supports
the Australian and New Zealand markets. For the twelve
months to 31st March, 2006, the plant generated HK$207
million in revenue, representing a strong increase of 38.9%.
The segment result was HK$26 million, an increase of HK$16
million or 160.0% over the previous year.

By Location of Customers
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The market for soymilk (including flavoured soymilk and rice
milk) continued to grow steadily in both Australia and New
Zealand, expanding by 5% and 17 % respectively. The major
driver of category growth has been product innovation. The
introduction of house brand product ranges and new product
launches by almost all industry players resulted in keener
competition and put increased pressure on shelf space in all
sales outlets. However, with the support of successful
marketing initiatives, revenue generated from the Australian
and New Zealand markets was HK$214 million, up 37.2%
from last year.
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AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND (continued)

During the year, Vitasoy Australia maintained its focus on
product innovation with five new products successfully
launched — VITASOY LUSH Aseptic Soymilk Caramel, VITASOY
LUSH Aseptic Soymilk Vanilla , VITASOY LUSH Refrigerated
Soymilk Berry Bliss, VITASOY LUSH Refrigerated Soymilk
Vanilla and VITASOY Aseptic Ricemilk Protein Enriched. Apart
from successful product innovation, our sales growth was
also driven by our strong marketing programme, effective
retail pricing strategy and our reputation as a supplier of high
quality products. We have also continued to work closely with
naturopaths, dieticians and physicians to educate consumers
about the benefits of soymilk.

Owing to Vitasoy Australia’s remarkable growth, the
Wodonga production facility has almost reached its maximum
capacity. For this reason, we have commenced a capacity
expansion programme to double the factory’s volume
capability. This capacity expansion, due to be completed in
the second half of 2006/2007, will enable us to meet the
rising demand of the burgeoning Australian and New Zealand
soyfood market and capture new business opportunities.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERBES

We are firmly committed to statutory and regulatory corporate
governance standards and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The
Board of Directors reviews the corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure alignment of interests and
expectations from our shareholders, the investing public and
the other stakeholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March,
2006, complied with the Code Provisions on the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except
for the Code Provision A.2.1 for the separation of the roles
of Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees
to manage and oversee the specified affairs of the Company.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management power
of the Company to the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company.

The Board is committed to the Company’s mission to creating
value for our shareholders. The Board is responsible for
developing strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning cycles are
generally five years. The Board has recently adopted Five Year
Strategic Plan and will continuously monitor the actual
performance against the Strategic Plan on a regular basis.
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A defined schedule of matters reserved for Board decision
has been adopted by the Board. Apart from strategic planning,
certain important matters involving finance and shareholders’
interests are reserved for approval by the Board, including,
for example, annual budget, financial statements against
budget, dividend policy, material investments, material
acquisitions and disposals; major financing activities and
appointment of Director(s) following the recommendation(s)
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six Non-executive Directors and
four Executive Directors. Four of the Non-executive Directors
are independent, from different business and professional
fields. The category, position and brief biographical
information of each Director, together with the relationship
among each other, are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this Annual Report. The Directors,
including the Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Listing Rules sets out that the
roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is the Executive Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. At the present stage, the
roles of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are performed basically by Mr. Winston Yau-
lai LO. However, the Board of Directors and the Executive
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Chairman of the Company fully recognise that the respective
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should
be separated in the course of time to ensure better checks
and balances and hence better corporate governance. It is
envisaged that the transition process will take some time so
as to minimise any negative impact on the operation of the
Company but it is hoped to achieve that goal by 31st March,
2008. The Company has taken a significant step forward with
the appointment of Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN as the
Chief Executive, Asia, who is also the Executive Director of
the Company, in July, 2004. Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN
is not connected with Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO or any of the
other Directors. After this appointment, the Board has already
established a mechanism whereby the executive
responsibilities originally assumed by the Executive Chairman
have gradually been, and will continue to be, delegated to
the Chief Executive, Asia. We are glad to report that the
Company has been progressing smoothly in assigning the
executive responsibilities from the Executive Chairman to the
Chief Executive, Asia.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board met six times in fiscal year of 2005/2006 to mainly
discuss and approve the overall strategies, including the Five
Year Strategic Plan for the Group; to review and monitor the
financial and operating performance of the Group and its
business units respectively and to consider and approve the
annual budget for the Group.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Company. There are established
procedures for Directors to seek independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities,
where appropriate, at the Company’s expense.
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Individual attendance of each Board member at these
meetings is as follows:

EZEXMERNZEERZHERRINNAT

Attendance

Independent Non-executive Directors B IEHITES
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI FHREHLT 6/6
Mr. lain F. BRUCE MmELTEE 6/6
Mr. Chi-kian SHIU BRRERSE A 6/6
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND Jan P. S. ERLUNDY A

(appointed on 6th July, 2006) (RZZZRELARNBEEE) N/ATNE A
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO EREAT 6/6
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRREL 6/6
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Chairman) mRESEE (XR) 6/6
Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN PRERRE ST

(appointed on 11th July, 2005) (RZZEZTRFEA+—HEZMD 4/4
Mr. Eric Fat YU RELAE 6/6
Mr. John Shek-hung LAU 2B E 6/6
Mr. Fransis Ming-yin KONG TEHERE

(resigned on 18th April, 2005) (RZZEZTRFHEA+/\BEHD) 0/0

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee of the Company or by shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director who is appointed by the Board shall
retire at the next General Meeting.

The Non-executive Directors of the Company do not have a
specific term of appointment. Under the Company’s current
Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least every three years and one-third (or the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third) of Directors
shall retire from office every year at the Company’s Annual
General Meeting. The term of appointment of a Director
cannot exceed three years.
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Induction programmes are arranged for the newly appointed
Directors on the general business of the Company. On
appointment, new Directors will also be given an induction
programme kit advising them of their responsibilities and
duties as Directors under various regulatory requirements and
the Board procedures, including the Terms of Reference of
the Board Committees.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial
Statements for 2005/2006 are prepared on a going-concern
basis. All the new accounting standards and policies adopted
by the Company have been thoroughly discussed and
approved at the Audit Committee before adoption by
the Board.

The Group has adopted its own Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code"”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Specific enquiry was made of all Directors and all Directors
have confirmed compliance with the required standard set
out in the Code for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Executive Committee, a
Remuneration and Nomination Committee (formerly known
as Compensation Committee) and an Audit Committee.
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Executive Committee
The Executive Committee was established in 2001. Its current
members include all four Executive Directors, who are:

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (Chairman)
Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN
Mr. Eric Fat YU

Mr. John Shek-hung LAU

The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to deal
with certain operational matters of the Group.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Compensation Committee was established in February,
1994 and was renamed as “Remuneration and Nomination
Committee” on 2nd February, 2005 with increased scope of
authority. This Committee now comprises four Independent
Non-executive Directors and two Non-executive Directors and
its current members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (Chairman)
Mr. lain F. BRUCE
Mr. Chi-kian SHIU
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND
(appointed on 6th July, 2006)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO

The Committee was set up to consider and approve the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors and Senior
Management of the Group, including salaries, benefits in kind
and bonuses; the bonus schemes and the other long-term
incentive schemes, including share option and other plans.
The Committee also reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board from time to time and recommends to the Board
on appointments of Directors and the succession planning
for Directors.
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The Committee met three times in fiscal year of 2005/2006.
Individual attendance of each Committee member at these
meetings is as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors B IEHITES

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI THEHT
(Chairman) (X%

Mr. lain F. BRUCE mETEE

Mr. Chi-kian SHIU PR S

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND
(appointed on 6th July, 2006)

Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO BRAXTL
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO ERH T
Attendance By Invitation: FEBHE
Executive Chairman HITERE

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO ERIERE

Jan P. S. ERLUND 4
(R=ZETARFLASNBERT
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Attendance

HER

3/3

3/3
3/3

N/ATE

3/3
3/3

3/3

Report of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Committee has reviewed, discussed and approved the
remuneration of Senior Management including the Executive
Directors and key executives of the Group by reference to
the individuals’ job responsibilities and performances, industry
benchmarks and prevailing market conditions. The Committee
has also approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant
of share options, having given due consideration to both the
Group's financial performance and the individuals’
performances during the year in accordance with the
performance-based compensation policy recommended by
an independent consultant. No individual Executive Director
is involved in the decision process for his own remuneration.

During the year, the Committee nominated Mr. Ambrose
Kam-shing CHAN, the Chief Executive, Asia, as the Executive
Director for approval of appointment by the Board. Mr.
Ambrose Chan was duly appointed as an Executive Director
by the Board on 11th July, 2005.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. Its current
members include four Independent Non-executive Directors,
who are:

Mr. lain F. BRUCE (Chairman)
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
Mr. Chi-kian SHIU
Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND
(appointed on 6th July, 2006)

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the External Auditors and any
guestions of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the External Auditors; to meet
with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and scope of
the audit, matters of concern when requested to do so by
the External Auditors; to review the interim financial report
and annual financial statements before they are submitted
to the Board; to discuss problems and reservations arising
from the interim review and final audit, and any other matters
the External Auditors may wish to discuss, and to review the
External Auditors’ management letter and management'’s
response; to review the internal audit programmes and to
ensure co-ordination between the Internal and External
Auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Group; and to consider any findings of major
investigations of internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response.
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The Audit Committee met three times in fiscal year of 2005/
2006. Individual attendance of each Committee member at
these meetings is as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors M IEHITES

Mr. lain F. BRUCE (Chairman) mBLEE (EHE)

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI FHEST

Mr. Chi-kian SHIU ARER S E

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND
(appointed on 6th July, 2006)

Attendance by Invitation: EREHRE :
Executive Chairman HITEE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO ERIELAE

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer #1T& E3 8154885

Mr. John Shek-hung LAU 215 BEE
Internal Auditor A EBFEAZ AN
External Auditors HNEEAZ ER A

Jan P. S. ERLUNDE 4
(R=ZZEERFLANBEZT)

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the revised accounting
standards, the 2005/2006 interim financial report and annual
financial statements with management and the Company’s
External Auditors and recommended their adoption by the
Board. The Committee also reviewed with the Internal Auditor
the Company’s internal control systems and the periodic audit
reports prepared by the Internal Auditor and approved the
2006/2007 audit plan.

The Committee has met with the External Auditors to discuss
with them the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations prior to the commencement of the audit. The
Audit Committee has also reviewed and considered the terms
of engagement of the External Auditors, including assessing
their independence and objectivity. The Audit Committee has
also reviewed and approved/pre-approved the audit and non-
audit services provided by the External Auditors, together with
their respective fees.
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SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance and review of a system of internal
control that provides reasonable assurance on the reliability
and integrity of financial and operational information,
effective and efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and
compliance with laws and regulations. The system of internal
control is designed to manage rather than eliminate all
risks of failure while its goal is to provide reasonable, not
absolute, assurance regarding the achievement of
organisational objectives.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group Internal Audit Department supports management
by carrying out a systematic approach to evaluate the risks
and improve the effectiveness of the internal control systems
at all levels of the companies in the Group. The Audit
Committee endorses the audit plan annually. The Group
Internal Auditor has unrestricted access to all parts of the
business, and direct access to any level of management as he
considers necessary. The Group Internal Auditor reports his
findings and the agreed corrective actions to senior
management responsible for the area under audit. He also
reports regularly the results of the reviews in a summary to
the Audit Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the
Company by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
An amount of HK$2.8 million (2004/2005: HK$2.5 million)
was charged for the fiscal year of 2005/2006 for KPMG'’s
statutory audits for the Company and subsidiaries. The
amount for the other non-audit services provided by KPMG
for the Company and subsidiaries during the year was HK$2.3
million (2004/2005: HK$0.5 million). The non-audit services
mainly comprised tax advisory services, risk advisory services
and executive recruitment.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to
the 2005/2006 financial statements are set out in the section
of “Report of the Auditors” on pages 65 to 66.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our shareholders, including
institutional investors, is crucial. We manage investor relations
systematically as a key part of our operations.

We maintain a website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep our
shareholders and the investing public posted of our latest
business developments, our corporate governance policy, and
other relevant shareholder information.

During the year, we continued to follow a policy of
maintaining an open and regular dialogue with institutional
and minority shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the
media through different means, including meetings,
presentations, telephone conferences, correspondences,
media briefings and press releases to distribute information
on the Group’s latest developments and strategies. We also
continued to be proactive in responding to general enquiries
raised by the investing public, individual and institutional
investors and investment analysts.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEETEAE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, aged 65, is the Executive Chairman
of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed a Director of the
Company in 1972. He is principally responsible for the Group's
long-term strategic development. Mr. Lo is a member of The
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and the Court of Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He is the vice president
of the Council of Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong and a
director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a listed company
in Hong Kong, and Ping Ping Investment Company Limited.
He is the brother of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and Ms. Yvonne
Mo-ling LO.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI, aged 67, was appointed
a Director of the Company in 1994. Sir David is the chairman
and chief executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. He is
the chairman of the Chinese Banks' Association, Limited and
the Hong Kong Management Association. He is a member
of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee and the Banking
Advisory Committee. He is also a member of both the
Executive Council and the Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. Sir David is also a director
of China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited, China
Overseas Land & Investment Limited, COSCO Pacific Limited,
Dow Jones & Company, Inc., Guangdong Investment Limited,
The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The
Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited, San
Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited and SCMP Group Limited,
all being companies listed either in Hong Kong or overseas.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. lain F. BRUCE, aged 65, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2001. Mr. Bruce joined KPMG Hong Kong in
1964 and was its senior partner from 1991 to 1996. He is
the chairman of KCS Limited. Mr. Bruce is a director of China
Medical Technologies, Inc., Noble Group Limited, Paul Y
Engineering Group Limited, Tencent Holdings Limited and
Wing On Company International Limited, all being companies
listed either in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. Chi-kian SHIU, aged 74, was appointed a Director of
the Company in 1987. Mr. Shiu was a director of South China
Cinema & Investment Company Limited with which he had
been associated since 1952.

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, aged 67, was appointed a Director of
the Company on 6th July, 2006. Mr. Erlund is currently a
partner of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard, a law firm in
Copenhagen, Denmark. Mr. Erlund is a practising lawyer and
specialises in corporate and commercial law and arbitration.
He was the president of the Danish Bar and Law Association,
president of the Danish Maritime Law Association and
chairman of the Maritime and Transport Committee of the
International Bar Association, and most recently president of
Copenhagen Rotary Club. Mr. Erlund is the chairman of the
board of directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd.,
Dansk Skovseiskab A/S and deputy chairman of Rederiet
Fabricius Marine A/S, all being listed on the Stock
Exchanges in Denmark.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, aged 67, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 1992. Ms. Lo is a member of the Docent
Committee and Bishop White Committee of the Royal Ontario
Museum in Toronto, Canada. She is the sister of Mr. Winston
Yau-lai LO and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO.

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 58, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980
and was the President of Vitasoy USA until 2001. Ms. Lo was
the president of the Soyfoods Association of North America
which represents 60 soyfoods companies covering the US
and Canada. She is the sister of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO and
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO.

Executive Directors

Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN, aged 52, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2005. Mr. Chan is the Group’s
Chief Executive, Asia. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2004.
He has extensive fast moving consumer goods general
management experiences with global leaders in the foods
and beverages, personal care and consumer healthcare
industries in the Asia Pacific Region. He is currently responsible
for the overall strategic planning, business development and
general management of the Group in Asia Pacific, including
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Australian operations.

Mr. Eric Fat YU, aged 56, was appointed a Director of the
Company in 1989. Mr. Yu is the Group’s Senior Director —
Manufacturing and Project Management. He had experience
in engineering works and project management whilst working
previously with a number of companies overseas. He joined
the Group in 1974. He is now responsible for the formulation
of the Group’s manufacturing policy and strategy and the
management of the Group’s new joint venture project.

Mr. John Shek-hung LAU, aged 59, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1990. Mr. Lau is the Group’s
Senior Director — Finance and Administration. He joined the
Group in 1988 having worked previously with a number of
multinational companies both in Hong Kong and overseas.
He is currently responsible for the finance and administration
of the Group.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Hong Kong Operation

Mr. Laurence P. EISENTRAGER, aged 54, Chief Executive,
Hong Kong. Mr. Eisentrager is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2002 and was the General
Manager of the Group’s operation in Australia until 2005.
He has very extensive experience in the food and beverage
industry in Hong Kong, Australia and internationally.

North American Operation

Mr. Robert C. JONES, aged 58, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Vitasoy USA Inc.. Mr. Jones is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s
operations in North America. He joined the Group in 2004.
He has extensive experience in innovation, marketing, sales
and new product development (as well as finance and
manufacturing) in the pharmaceutical and nutraceutical
industries.

Mainland China Operation

Mr. Jack Jie YUAN, aged 37, Managing Director of Vitasoy
(China) Investments Company Limited. Mr. Yuan is responsible
for the general management and development of the Group’s
operation in Mainland China. Mr. Yuan joined the Group in
2004 as the General Manager of the Group’s Shenzhen joint
venture operation. He has extensive experience in the
beverage industry and has previously worked with a number
of multinational companies in Mainland China.

Australian and New Zealand Operation

Mr. Scott A. PANNELL, aged 36, General Manager of Vitasoy
Australia Products Pty. Ltd.. Mr. Pannell is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s
operations in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group
in 2005. He has very extensive experience in the fast moving
consumer goods (FMCG) industry within Australia and New
Zealand. He has experience in working in manufacturing
businesses operating within the retail grocery, route and
convenience and food service markets. Prior to joining Vitasoy
Australia he was general manager of National Foods New
Zealand dairy foods operation, with this role following on
from his general management position with National Foods
King Island Dairy Group. Previous to these roles, he held senior
sales and marketing roles with several renowned
FMCG companies.
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Report of the Directors
EETWES

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2006.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principal place of business at No. 1
Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to
the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the year is as follows:

The largest customer BAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate BERREFAE
The largest supplier BAMER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate BOAREREET

EREMAREBE_ZTRF=A=1+—8I
FEZFBRIAEBUIBEIRE

FTEEXMR

M INBEREEAR AR ([KARR) SERRE
BEREBEMK L AR HafifEEkE
BERMAUNE BRI REE 5

FEEHR

ARTZ TR ARERBERR RS - I
BARZ T BEHREMERAHREN
16 -

ARBREMBRR ([AEE]) RAMBEER
B E D 2 EBD TR B RERMTE14 -

FEFFREER
UTHEARFEEERF RTEA D BMAARE
BHERMRBRZEM

Percentages of the Group’s total

Sales Purchases
fEAREE hA £
HERBERI REAEEI
15%
37%
26%
38%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in these major customers
and suppliers.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2006
and the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at

that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 67
to 166.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit for the year, before dividends, of HK$185,025,000
(2005 (restated): HK$123,570,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 27
to the financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK2.8 cents per ordinary share (2005:
HK2.8 cents per ordinary share) was paid on 12th January,
2006. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK6.7 cents per ordinary share (2005: HK5.7 cents
per ordinary share) and a special dividend of HK10.0 cents
per ordinary share (2005: HK10.0 cents per ordinary share)
in respect of the year ended 31st March, 2006.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$92,000 (2005: HK$1,489,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assets of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31st March, 2006
are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year on exercise
of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the

Company'’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and up to the date of
this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI and Mr. Eric
Fat YU retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chi-kian SHIU retires from the board by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting but will
not offer himself for re-election.

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, appointed to the board on 6th July,
2006, retires from the board in accordance with Article 110
of the Company’s Articles of Association, and offers himself
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligation.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms
for rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March,
2006 had the following interests in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company at that date as recorded in the register
of directors’ interests and short positions required to be kept
under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

("SFO"):

(1) Interestsinissued shares

EERRMD - ABEROREERE
ZREERAR
RIBEGEZ R AE WGP E3521E&MREFZ AR A

B

KRB B RMARE - ARFANR T

NEZA=ZT-RAZEBEFEAGEARRCH

TR SRR P A T

(1) REBRITRHO ER

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SREEBK0.5TZEER

% of

Trusts and Total total

Personal Family similar ~ number of issued

Name Note interests interests interests  shares held shares

EEEfT

Rk ke  ROGLEEZ

:2] Wiz AER RiER BEES @y 2B

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), i 49,939,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 151,320,600 15.08%
EREBEE

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.60%
FEESET

Mr. Chi-kian SHIU 3,281,400 - - 3,281,400 0.33%
MEREE

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i), (i) - - 100,653,000 100,653,000 10.03%
BRANT

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (iii 31,866,450 - 72,678,300 104,544,750 10.42%
BRRTt

Mr. Eric Fat YU 509,000 - - 509,000 0.05%

RERE

Mr. John Shek-hung LAU 1,971,000 - - 1,971,000 0.20%
Gl Ny

Notes: PizE

(i)  Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in () BERELARNEEEHHF28,702,5000%
28,702,500 shares through interests of his wife. Bty - BUEAR BB Z SR 2 e -

(i) Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 27,974,700 (iy ZBEARZLTHABHSUpreme Luck Holdings
shares held by Supreme Luck Holdings Limited which in Limited $578 227,974, 7000l {5 = 12 -
turn holds such shares in trust for Myrna Lo Trust (formerly ZAFIAREE AH 19 AMyrna Lo Trust (A1
known as The Lo Kwee Seong 1987 Trust). The Lo Kwee Seong1987 Trust) £ 5 % Z MK

e
(i) Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i) BRIEBFEE  BREARTRERRZLH

and Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 72,678,300
shares held by The Bank of East Asia (Nominees) Limited
which holds such shares as a nominee for the K.S. Lo
Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee
of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is therefore deemed to be

interested in such shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)
(2) Interests in underlying shares
Certain Directors of the Company have been granted
options under the Company’s share option schemes,
details of which are set out in the section “Share option
schemes” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by the Directors in trust for the
Company, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Old share option scheme

On 9th March, 1994, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) under which the
Directors might, at their discretion, grant options to employees
and Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each in the
Company. This scheme was valid for 10 years ending 8th
March, 2004, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. The
purpose of this scheme was to provide incentives and rewards
to employees for their contribution to the Group. The principal
terms of this scheme were as follows:

—  The exercise price of the options was the higher of (a)
the nominal value of the shares and (b) an amount not
less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of
the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Old share option scheme (continued)

The options were exercisable for a period to be notified
by the Directors to each option holder, such period not
to exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

There was no minimum period which an option must
be held before it could be exercised, but the Directors
were empowered to impose at their discretion any such
minimum period at the date of offer.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options could be granted should not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time (excluding shares issued under the share
option scheme).

The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when
added to the number of shares issued or issuable to
that participant under the share option scheme must
not exceed 25% of the maximum aggregate number of
shares for the time being issued and issuable under the
share option scheme.

An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a
period of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer
or shorter period as the Directors might in their discretion
determine. An eligible Director or employee had to pay
HK$10 on acceptance of the option as a consideration.

As a result of the changes to Chapter 17 of the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) which governs the

operation of share option schemes, the Company terminated

the Old Share Option Scheme and adopted a new share option

scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 4th September,

2002. No further options were granted under the Old Share

Option Scheme upon its termination and all outstanding

options granted thereunder continued to be valid and

exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Old Share

Option Scheme until the expiry of the exercise period.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Old share option scheme (continued)

No share options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
were outstanding at 31st March, 2006 as they were either
exercised or lapsed on expiry of exercise period during the year.

New share option scheme

The New Share Option Scheme became effective on 4th
September, 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, remains in force for 10 years from that date. The
Directors may, at their discretion, grant options to any
employee of the Group, including Directors of any company
in the Group, to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.25
each in the Company. The purpose and the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme are the same as the Old Share Option
Scheme, except for the following:

—  The exercise price of the options is the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the
average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value
of the shares.

—  The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval
and adoption of the scheme.

— Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to any one participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant.

The total number of ordinary shares available for issue under
the New Share Option Scheme at 31st March, 2006 is
88,382,550 shares (including options for 22,543,000 ordinary
shares that have been granted but not yet exercised), which
represents 8.81% of the issued share capital of the Company
at 31st March, 2006.
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Report of the Directors

EEERES
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BRETE ®
New share option scheme (continued) B R AET & ()

The Directors of the Company individually and other RAFERFER - BARAAREERAMASE
employees of the Group in aggregate had the following B2 REEARBARRILTER BIREPHE
personal interests in options to subscribe for ordinary shares ZIEARERIT :

of the Company during the year and at the end of the year:

Directors

i

MrWinstonVaw L0 472000 ) 7192000 3182005 118 3450000 - 345000 - - - 1530 2405

Bt 108 ) 1004-3130013 168 220000 - - - - 000 1660 -
100 ) 1A005- 3130014 19 1700000 - - - - 1700000 1920 -
1005 i) /6200631152015 235 - 1A - - - 14 2405 -

Mr Ambose Kamshing 382004 () 31802006 28014 1910 900,000 - - - - 900,000 1910 -

CHANGooointedon 162005 (i) 162006~ 31552015 2375 - 2300 - - - 300 2405 -

11th July, 2005)

5 e

+it-BERD)

. Eic Fat YU 4000 ) 7/972000- 3182005 1193 135000 - 434000 1,000 - - 153 2405

FBRE W3 ) 14004-3130013 1688 738,000 - - - - 738000 1660 -
104 ) 14005- 3130014 1904 450,000 - - - - 450000 1920 -
1005 i) /6200631152015 2375 - 39,000 - - - 392,000 2405 -

N John Shekchung LA 4772000 ) 7972000 3118200 18 1953000 - 195200 1,000 - - 1530 2305

Yhmtt 040003 1000d- 3130013 1683 820000 - - - - 80000 1660 -
1004 ) 14005~ 3130014 1904 500,000 - - - - 500,000 1920 -
1005 i) 1620063152015 2375 - 392,000 - - - 392,000 2455 -

M. Frangis Mgy 4000 ) 7/972000- 3182005 1193 1000 - - - 1000 - 153 -

KONG (esignedon 142003 i) 1/4/2004- 3130013 1688 156000 - 76,000 - 76,000 - 1660 2250

18th Apr, 2005) 0 ) 140005- 313201 1904 978,000 - 244000 - 734,000 - 1920 15

THEFHR 350

BAT/\RED)

Hligible employees 47000 () 71972000~ 311802005 1% 11300 - 380,000 74,000 1000 - 153 2307

working under 0B ) 14004-3130013 1688 6458000 - 18800 - 63000 3927000 1660 2654

employment 100 ) 1A005- 3130014 194 4454000 - 70000 - 630000 3504000 1920 236

contracts 16005 ) 1/62006- 3150015 235 - 35000 - - 600 3136000 2405 -

REERANIEZ

~EIRS

27,706,000 8,160,000 9,360,000 744,000 3219000 22,543,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

New share option scheme (continued)
* being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the

options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

Information on the accounting policy for share options
granted and the value per option is provided in note 1(p)(iv)
and note 28 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Notes:

(i)  Options were granted under the Old Share Option Scheme.

(i)  Options were granted under the New Share Option Scheme.
For options granted on 1st April, 2003, 1st April, 2004 and 1st
June, 2005, they are exercisable progressively and the maximum

percentage of the options which may be exercised is determined
in stages as follows:

On or after 1st year anniversary of

the date of grant HZ
On or after 2nd year anniversary of B B HARRET AR R
the date of grant L HE

On or after 3rd year anniversary of

the date of grant HE
On or after 4th year anniversary of B B HARBRTUA S
the date of grant HZ

R A —BE

R REes = BF

BB rERT 8 (5

FEB AT 8 ()

* B R AR B R AR I L oA T (A0
F) B Z AT T

BHECELBRE s 2 BR R TEERECE

BZERD RIS R IERENE (p)(iv) &H

28 °

br EXFTIRTRESN - EAEE 2 AFRHE - AR

RIS EATMM B A R ES BT L8 BUER

NE|EFAFEEAKRR RS EM R T 2 &5

EEEmMER -

FisE -

iy BWEZBRENBEREERETERD -

(i) R B TR IR A A R -
R-TT=FNMA—H  —EENFNA B K
—EERFRNA—HELZBEREMNS - AT TT

02 BERRERI R Y B AN - MEEERAIITERE
etz Aok EIRAATE -

Percentage of
options granted
HERBREZADL
25%

anothers25%

another525%

another525%
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in
the Company’s issued shares at 31st March, 2006 amounting
to 5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of
the Directors.

FERRREMAL

R K AEEA AR 2

ZREmRAR

R-ZFEREF=ZA=1—8 ARFZEHMET
FMARRRIEETEBBZ5% A LWARAF
BRI RS - ZFEETEELAREL
R

Ms. Irene CHAN (), (i) 23,514,700 750,000

RERELT

Mr. Kai-tun LO (ii) 18,508,950 -

ERIEE

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (ii) 7,548,000 -

BEASLE

Avisaig Greater China Fund (iii) 64,301,500 -
("Avrisaig")

Avisaig Partners (Mauritius) (iv) - -
Limited (" Arisaig Mauritius”)

Mr. Lindsay William Ernest (v) - -
COOPER ("Cooper”)

Matthews International Capital (vi) - -
Management LLC

Commonwealth Bank of Australia (vil) - -

BN

- 72,678,300 96,943,000 9.66%

- 72678300 91,187,250 9.09%

- 72,678,300 80,226,300 8.00%

- - 64,301,500 6.41%

64,301,500 - 64,301,500 6.41%
64,301,500 - 64,301,500 6.41%
61,323,750 - 61,323,750 6.11%
60,339,000 - 60,339,000 6.01%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Ms. Irene CHAN is interested in 750,000 shares held for her
daughter Alexandra CHAN who is under the age of 18.

(i)  Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Mr. Kai-tun LO and Mr. Peter Tak-
shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank
of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a
nominee for the K.S. Lo Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of
them is a trustee of the K.S. Lo Foundation and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such shares.

(i) These interests are held by Arisaig in the capacity of
beneficial owner.

(iv) These interests are held by Arisaig Mauritius in the capacity of
investment manager of Arisaig. These interests are duplicated
by the interests described in Note (iii) above.

(v)  These interests represent Cooper’s interests through his indirect
33% interest in Arisaig Mauritius. These interests are duplicated
by the interests disclosed in Notes (iii) and (iv) above.

(vi) These interests are held by Matthews International Capital

Management LLC in the capacity of investment manager.

(vii) These interests represent Commonwealth Bank of Australia’s
interests through its indirect 100% interest in First State
Investment Management (UK) Limited (which holds 49,185,000
shares of the Company’s ordinary shares) and First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (which holds 11,154,000
shares of the Company’s ordinary shares).

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO
have been notified to the Company.

FERRREMAL

R & EER 5
2R RIRE ()
BT -

() MRESEZTHEAERERR T/ BRI Alexandra
CHAN#4 2 750,000/% f% {5 2 #E %5 ©

(i) MEBEFELLT - BHBEEREERTETHES
HRGRITZAREERRAAUREBARERE
ZESK. S. Lo Foundation #7%4.,272,678,300/%
f%15 o 195K, S. Lo FoundationZ FFEA » #R
WAR REAZERND 2 o

(i)  ZEREZETIHArisaig UERZHEBAAFDEAE -

(iv) *ZEHEZSTh A Arisaig Mauritius BAArisaig 2 1 & 4
BEHNFH o ZEEmE XM AmE AR
—h s -

(v) &SRR JhCooperiZ iR HEEH5 A Arisaig Mauritius
Z33%Em MR 2 e o 2SR
(i) B (V) P R 5 [ — D 4 o

(vi) ZS5HEZE Ty Matthews International Capital
Management LLCLAR B 4EIB B 1555 ©

(Vi) 2R TR B IR T iR I B FE A First State
Investment Management (UK) Limited (RZ/A 513
BN FI49,185,0000 FimAR) Kk 5K E (B4)
BRAT GRARFRAEARRATF1,154,0000% F @
IR) z bk a 2 s o

B EaESN - RARYENEG B IERALSE
RIEE S M FRPIE336MFMRT 2 ELMA
ZE A o
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 10th December, 2002, the Company entered into a Milk
Supply Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Shenzhen Guang
Ming Holdings Limited (“Guangming”), a substantial
shareholder holding 30% of the registered capital of the
Company'’s subsidiary, Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods
and Beverage Company Limited (“Shenzhen Vitasoy"”), under
which Guangming would supply milk products and provide
milk processing and packaging services to the Company for
a period of 3 years commencing 14th March, 2003. During
the year, an amount of HK$2,827,000 (2005: HK$3,054,000)
was charged by Guangming under the Agreement.

As the transactions are of a continuing nature and will arise
on a regular basis, the Company applied and the Stock
Exchange granted a waiver to the Company on 4th February,
2003 of strict compliance with the requirements under the
Listing Rules in respect of these transactions. Following the
amendments of the Listing Rules effective 31st March, 2004,
the transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing Rules which will only be
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set
out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules. An
announcement was made by the Company on 12th May,
2005 in this respect.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, considered that the transactions during the year
ended 31st March, 2006:

(i)  were entered in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company and in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement;

(i) were on normal commercial terms and were fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders as a
whole; and

(i) were either on normal commercial terms, or if there were
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they were on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable than terms available from independent
third parties.

In addition, the Auditors of the Company confirmed that:
(i) the transactions were approved by the board of directors;

(i) the transactions were entered into in accordance with
the agreed prices as set out in the Agreement; and

(iii) the consideration for the transactions had not exceeded
the annual cap of HK$4,000,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2006.

On 21st March, 2006, the Company entered into a new Milk
Supply Agreement (the “New Agreement”) with Guangming,
under which Guangming will supply milk products to the
Company for a period of 3 years commencing 1st April, 2006.

The transactions will constitute continuing connected
transactions under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing Rules, which
are only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement. The Directors propose
to set the amount of HK$5,000,000, HK$6,000,000 and
HK$7,000,000 as the annual cap amounts for the transactions
for the years ending 31st March, 2007, 2008 and 2009
respectively. An announcement was made by the Company
on 21st March, 2006 in this respect.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Particulars of employee retirement plans of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five years is set out on pages 167 and
168 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 6th July, 2006
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Report of the Auditors
RS ES

cbiac

Auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 67 to
166 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the Directors
to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and
fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently, that judgements and
estimates are made which are prudent and reasonable and
that the reasons for any significant departure from applicable
accounting standards are stated.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made
by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31st March, 2006 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6th July, 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement

melEERR

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z=FZ /X4 = A =+—H1FE CUBHH)

2006 2005
(restated) (E71))
Note iz $'000 Tt $'000 Tt

Turnover = 3&MK14 2,520,409 2,379,955
Cost of sales SHERAR (1,039,615) (1,012,415)
Gross profit EF 1,480,794 1,367,540
Other revenue H A 4 51,507 31,369
Marketing, selling and HE  HER

distribution expenses DHEA (985,153) (915,777)
Administrative expenses THER (164,116) (159,302)
Other operating expenses Hing £ B8R (149,257) (126,798)
Profit from operations BERA 233,775 197,032
Finance costs AR 5 (8,372) (9,042)
Restructuring cost BAKK 6 - (24,782)
Write back of provision for BB INGEE

compensation for traffic 2Bt

accident e 7 - 765
Profit before taxation BB AR 5 225,403 163,973
Income tax g%t 8(a) (40,378) (40,403)
Profit for the year NERER 185,025 123,570
Attributable to: FEqL
Equity shareholders ARAIREE

of the Company BAA 11 &M27(a) 172,076 120,982
Minority interests DHRR RS 27(a) 12,949 2,588
Profit for the year NERER 27(a) 185,025 123,570
Dividends payable to equity N NG

shareholders of BRESEAZ

the Company rEE

attributable to the year: RE : 12(a)
Interim dividend declared ERNERLZ

during the year FhEIRR S 28,091 27,725
Final dividend proposed after EERAREIR

the balance sheet date REAAR S 67,370 57,105
Special dividend proposed after FHEBREIRZ

the balance sheet date Rl 8 100,552 100,183

196,013 185,013
Earnings per share BRER 13
Basic -9 17.2 centsfll 12.2 centsfll
Diluted s 17.1 centsfll 12.1 centsfll
The notes on pages 77 to 166 form part of these financial statements. F77E166 B 2 MDA BEIMER 2 — 85D °
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meBEEAR

At 31st March, 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R=ZZ R F=A=+—H LB E)
2006 2005
(restated) (E71))
Note itz $'000 F7t $'000 Ft $'000 F7r $'000 F7r
Non-current assets FhReEE
Fixed assets ETEE 15(a)
— Property, plant and /N
equipment & 700,863 754,341
— Investment property —REME 10,405 10,931
— Interests in leasehold land - RELCERE
held for own use under HEEERZ
operating leases HAE iR 5,364 5,419
716,632 770,691
Employee retirement ESRIK
benefit assets BHEE 17(b) 1,467 1,988
Deferred tax assets RERBEE 18(b) 2,952 1,224
Bank deposits BTER 19 22,768 38,427
Other financial asset HinemEE 20 13,922
757,741 812,330
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 208,111 185,340
Trade and other receivables FEUEE N I LA FE IR 22 352,131 304,452
Bank deposits FITER 19 78,497 91,606
Cash and cash equivalents Re kA eEBEER 19 402,540 402,673
1,041,279 984,071
Current liabilities hEEE
Trade and other payables AT R A R X 24 345,986 303,678
Bank loans FITER 25 41,279 154,250
Obligations under MERE
finance leases 2B 26 2,945 3,235
Current tax payable (R EFE 18(a) 10,561 11,201
400,771 472,364
Net current assets FRBERE 640,508 511,707
Total assets less BEEH,
current liabilities V=N
carried forward peid 1,398,249 1,324,037
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2006 2005
(restated) (E71))
Note iz §000 ¥7 $1000 F72 $1000 F7¢ $1000 F7¢
Total assets less BEER
current liabilities nEBE
brought forward T 1,398,249 1,324,037
Non-current liabilities FReas
Bank loans FITER 25 78,050 14,595
Obligations under REEE
finance leases ZEH 26 2,763 5,708
Employee retirement EERIK
benefit liabilities BHEE 17(b) 2,951 3,745
Deferred tax liabilities EEHERRE 18(b) 5,551 4,608
89,315 28,656
NET ASSETS FEE 1,308,934 1,295,381
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ~ &EARf## 27(a)
Share capital AR 250,822 248,482
Reserves i 999,546 999,230
Total equity attributable ~ ARQFIRE
to equity shareholders H AE(L
of the Company BERAH 1,250,368 1,247,712
Minority interests DERRES 58,566 47,669
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,308,934 1,295,381

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6th RZZBERFLANBEEETSRAWHERM

July, 2006

Winston Yau-lai LO John Shek-hung LAU BERE 218558
Director Director = EF

The notes on pages 77 to 166 form part of these financial statements. FET77E1668 2 Wt Ty AR ¥k 2 — &b °
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Balance Sheet

BERAERX

At 31st March, 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R=ZZ 4= A=+—H UHEEHE)

2006 2005
Note izt $'000 T7 $'000 T $'000 7t $'000 7t
Non-current assets FhEEE
Fixed assets EEEE 15(b)
~ Property, plant and —M% - BE
equipment T 155,460 165,719
— Investment property —REME 10,405 10,931
165,865 176,650
Interest in subsidiaries MBARER 16 143,425 273,901
Employee retirement BRI
benefit assets BAEE 17(b) 1,659 2,166
Bank deposits RITEN 19 22,768 38,427
Other financial asset Hiv e mEE 20 13,922 -
347,639 491,144
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 90,418 83,426
Trade and other RS R
receivables FE iR 22 229,562 199,377
Amounts due from EKHBAR
subsidiaries HE 23 400,646 242,176
Bank deposits RITEN 19 50,055 70,593
Cash and cash RHeRie
equivalents ZEIER 19 269,447 314,242
1,040,128 909,814
Current liabilities hEEE
Trade and other FERERF R E A
payables IR 24 168,827 146,498
Current tax payable R AT 18(a) 6,164 10,488
174,991 156,986
Net current assets FREEE 865,137 752,828
Total assets less BEER,
current liabilities V=N
carried forward #E 1,212,776 1,243,972
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2006 2005

Note iz $'000 T7 $'000 T7 $'000 7t $'000 7t
Total assets less BEER
current liabilities nBaE
brought forward Al 1,212,776 1,243,972
Non-current liabilities FrRagE
Employee retirement BRI
benefit liabilities BHEE 17(b) 2,834 3,595
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEARE 18(b) 5,050 4,457
7,884 8,052
NET ASSETS FEE 1,204,892 1,235,920
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARf#E 27(b)
Share capital R 250,822 248,482
Reserves G 954,070 987,438
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,204,892 1,235,920
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6th RIZTZRFLANBEEZSRBIWEZM
July, 2006
Winston Yau-lai LO John Shek-hung LAU ERE 21855
Director Director EE £
The notes on pages 77 to 166 form part of these financial statements. FE772166 8 2 Wk Ty AN ek 2 — &b °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e ER

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z=FZ /4= A=+—HIFE UUBEHHE)

2006 2005
(restated) (Z51))
Note it §1000 F7 $000 F72 $1000 F72 $1000 F72
Total equity at 1st April ROUA—B 2 EHA
As previously reported: PAE2 R
- attributable to equity —ARAIRE
shareholders of the FEA
Company FEfh 27(a) 1,247,712 1,246,540
— minority interests —SERRER 27(a) 47,669 44,780
1,295,381 1,291,320
Opening balance adjustment BASRIAY
arising from change in SHUEE
accounting policy for SIEZ 5]
financial instruments AR 2(f) &%:27(a) (1,749) -
As restated, after opening B (BAELHN
balance adjustment ) - g7£a) 77777777777 L223fi33 . 1,2?1}29 -
Net income recognised BERRARERZ
directly in equity: N
Exchange differences on BEINEHEA
translation of the financial BER
statements of FEEZ
foreign subsidiaries B ER 27(a) 1,109 2,194
Net profit for the year: REERRFE
As previously reported: PAE2 R
- attributable to equity —ARAIRE
shareholders of the FEA
Company FEfh 123,747
~ minority interests —VERFEER 2,588
126,335
Prior period adjustment BRI BERE
arising from change in Nz &5t
accounting policy for &S5 %
share-based payment 2 BIEFR 2(a)(i) (2,765)
Net profit for the year RER N FE
(2005: as restated) (ZZZREF : 5Y) 27(a) 185,025 123,570
Total recognised income REERAZ
and expense for the year WA B S 4R
(2005: as restated) (ZEZ1F . BH) 186,134 125,764
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2006 2005
(restated) (E71))
Note i $1000 52 §1000 F7 $1000 F7¢ $1000 F7¢
Attributable to: FEf
- equity shareholders of the — AR E
Company FAEA 174,421 121,954
— minority interests — DR EER 11,713 3,310
186,134 125,764
Dividends RE 27(a)
Final dividend approved in HEBRE—FEZ
respect of the previous year REME (57,139) (56,395)
Special dividend approved in HEBRE—FEZ
respect of the previous year RRIRE (100,244) (49,469)
Interim dividend declared in BEERZAEE
respect of the current year HERE (28,091) (27,725)
Dividend paid to minority ATFLEREL
shareholder RE (816) (921)
(186,290) (134,5170)7
Movements in equity REXRS
arising from capital MEEZ
transactions: BR2E .
Shares issued under share IR AR 2
option schemes BIIRM 27(a) 12,824 10,042
Equity settled share-based PARRID BER 2 A
transactions (2005: ZR5(ZETHE
3s restated) 7)) 27(a) 2,634 2,765
15,458 12,807
Total equity at 31st March A= A=+ — Bz ERA%H 1,308,934 1,295,381

HMPBEREBERLE —T20H /ZERFER
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For the year ended 31st March, 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZE=Z

FAEZ A= ALLEE GUBEH )

2006 2005
(restated) (Z51))
Note izt $'000 Tt $'000 T $'000 F7t $'000 F7t
Restatement of total BYIREE
recognised income and BRZBAR
expense for the year is Bt
attributable to: FES
Equity shareholders of the KATIRKE
Company FEA (2,765)
Minority interests DYRR B =
(2,765)
Avrising from restatement of: BY|ATER :
- net income recognised —EREARERL
directly in equity ON:E =
- net profit for the year —AEERFFE (2,765)
(2,765)

The notes on pages 77 to 166 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z=FZ /X4 = A =+—H1FE CUBHH)

2006 2005
(restated) (Z51))
Note iz $'000 7t $'000 ¥t $'000 7t $'000 7t
Operating activities eSS
Profit before taxation BT RTE R 225,403 163,973
Adjustments for: HE
~ Depreciation of property, - W% BEX
plant and equipment R ziTE 110,671 112,329
— Depreciation of investment - BEMEZ
property e 526
— Amortisation of interests in - BELEHERE
leasehold land held for {EERZHE
own use under TR
operating leases B 216
- Impairment loss on property, — — % - BEREEZ
plant and equipment REEE -
— Interest expenses — L 7,951
— Finance charges on - RERE
obligations under finance &%z
leases MBER 421
— Interest income — FIBMA (12,474) (5,255)
- Loss on disposal of property, — — HEME  BEL
plant and equipment B 831
— Equity settled share-based — MR RER
payment expenses X2 B 2,634
— Change in fair value of - SREEAREL
financial asset 2 (53)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss SNE (Ii32) /518 (2,516)
Operating profit before FitEEESE
changes in working
capital 333,610 301,163
(Increase)/decrease in F&@Em ,/
inventories D (22,771) 26,695
Increase in trade and other FEMOBR R R E A RN
receivables b (47,679) (14,750)
Increase in trade and other FERTBRR R E A RT3
payables 110 40,487
Decrease in net employee EERNGEFAETFE
retirement benefit liabilities e (273) (1,846)
Cash generated from Fd-F 38
operations JiigEsikn 303,374 316,117
Tax paid BARE
~ Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BRAEBTGER (39,503) (35,895)
- Taxation outside Hong Kong ~ — EZE B IMEE
paid A (2,300) (1,581)
Net cash generated from BEEWBHG
operating activities RERE 261,571 278,641
HEMDEREEERAR = IZEREFER



For the year ended 31st March, 2006 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z=FZ /4= A=+—HIFE UUBEHHE)

2006 2005
(restated) (Z51))
Note it §1000 F7 $000 F72 $000 F72 $1000 F72

Investing activities REEH
Payment for purchase of BEVE  BE

property, plant and ]

equipment 2B (62,207) (50,071)
Proceeds from disposal of HENE - BE

property, plant and ]

equipment PS8 612 1,980
Placement of bank deposits HERTER (333,450) (314,166)
Maturity of bank deposits B HRERITER 347,307 334,126
Interest received BT S 12,474 5,255
Net cash used in investing REEEMRA

activities BE T - (§5L26j1) 77777777777 (722L8776)7
Financing activities MEED
Capital element of finance ENRARERS

lease rentals paid ZEXEMH (3,234) (6,324)
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ #73&ER1TEFL 115,962 -
Repayment of bank loans BRFITER (157,594) (14,129)
Interest element of finance ENRARERS

lease rentals paid ZREEH (421) (693)
Interest paid BAFS (7,951) (8,349)
Proceeds from shares issued REERE 2T

on exercise of share options {58 27(c)ii) 12,824 10,042
Dividends paid to equity A AR

shareholders of the FAEA

Company ERERE (185,474) (133,589)
Dividend paid to minority M ERR

shareholder ERERS (816) (921)
Net cash used in financing RETBFA

activities REeFE (226,704) (1 53,963)7
Net (decrease)/increase in RERRLEZEER

cash and cash equivalents (Hid) /1B 058 (397) 101,802
Cash and cash equivalents mMA-AZRE

at 1st April kBREEEER 402,673 300,624
Effect of foreign exchange EXZE

rate changes 28 264 247
Cash and cash equivalents ZA=T-AZEER

at 31st March HeZEER 19 402,540 402,673

The notes on pages 77 to 166 form part of these financial statements. F77E166 8 2 Mt IR Rz 2 —2H o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B i% R IR Ff 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7&#&TE)

1

(a)

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are effective or available for early adoption for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2005. Information
on the changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these new and revised HKFRSs for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements is provided in note 2.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2006 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policy set out in note 1(k).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1

(b)

(9]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the
next year are discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is a company in which the Group, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or
controls more than half the voting power or controls the
composition of the board of directors. Subsidiaries are
considered to be controlled if the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies, so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

An investment in a controlled subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised profits but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the portion
of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests
that are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet and statement of changes in equity within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between
minority interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06

BB ()
Eﬁ&&%’%zﬁﬁig

uﬂw‘

AEEFATI%EBEXIEﬁpﬁMH AR - HES
FHERZIERTREZERX MR - EPEFEeEX
IR AR - IRIERTEE MMARRAE G
2 - QIFE(EIERT 2 BIRMAIR R R AR

BT R BRSNS LD RFTED
HETEIRRAEARE 2 FIE - LARIEH R AT
ETFERREANFHERBG 2 ETONHRAS
EPAPFFESS ©

K& AR

REBEEE(RAEODIRE © HB AR RIEAEE

E&?F‘aﬁ&?¢ﬁﬁﬂ¥§kﬁ?§ﬁﬂ%$ AT I E

BN EHIHEES ACIRNC
EAR Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁwﬂiﬁﬁ?‘TZEM%&%%%

BERARBRBR R 2 B85 - BINE AR

BIRSAR R AHER]

RSS2 B AR IR E iR 2 B
ERaMBmRTEMHAE  EEARRITBE
BEGEAL -

AEBARERZ EARNANEB AR S REE

HEZAEMAREIER - N R BT & M SRR
2R - MEREER  AEBARIZEL

ZAREB FRIRBR BTG N R 2 77 S o

EEBZ PBBRER - RIEIFAAREERN
ERNBARREES < MBRARFEERD
EURERERAEERBRMERBER 2
ﬁﬂq HEARNFIREREABGEREDFZ
PEBRMIERNEERE 2 R AR R EE
K2 - VEEKE?Z?%JU@ZJEETE%Q%KHQ
?ﬁs‘ RAIPIERA A ZFH DL °

o F“w Fﬁsﬂ %

o



()

(d)

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the
Group's interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(g)).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(g)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties, less their estimated residual values, if any, using
the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than
50 years after the date of completion.

Both the useful life and the residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Property, plant and equipment
The following property, plant and equipment are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(g)):

- freehold land and buildings;

—  land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land
and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not held under
an operating lease;
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8o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

—  buildings situated on leasehold land, where the fair value
of the building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of the
lease; and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

(i) Leasehold land and buildings over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

No depreciation is provided for freehold land.

(i)  Other plant and equipment at the following rates:

Factory machinery and equipment 6-25%
Fixtures, furniture and

office equipment 9-33%
Motor vehicles 18 - 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.
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1

(f)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

0]

(if)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

However, for land held for own use under an operating
lease, where the fair value of the land cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee, or at the date of construction
of those buildings, if later.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are included in
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in note 1(e). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 1(g). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
S0 as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leased assets (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

(g) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
such evidence exists, an impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

—  For current receivables that are carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar asset
where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses are reversed if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment loss decreases.

—  For current receivables that are carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of the asset).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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1

(9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed

at each balance sheet date to identify indications that

the following assets may be impaired or an impairment

loss previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

investment property;

interests in leasehold land held for own use under

operating leases, and

interest in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

(i)

(ii)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash flows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1

(9

(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

(iii)  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which

the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(g)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
(see note 1(g)).
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(k)

()

(m)

(n)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between cost and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Whetre it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

SFERER B
RERRESEIER
RekReFEARBRRTAFINEFRS -
TFRERIT R E A I B 2 SBAF R R e BT =
MENEZRE - WFIRE R RERS BRI A R
REMER RS - AMAAR 2 BEKSRER
AR MAMETBARRF=EANA -

BEARMEERHZPRNEREI 2 SHERE
RO BEFFEAEEHNEEERACERMEEL
THER AR ERER - EAAABERSEE HERN
FHE - IS EBNREAER

AN

e MEIR A A (ERER, - ERIRE A A

fR - BINREIR B AEX - ABZARAASK -

i}
£ of

m
\U]]} \[[H?F

ISR
B Z% BERARENGRRZ SR AETHER -
1% - RERBERHREBEKANEIER - M
B OB M ZRRIABRN AN EEHR
NIBE AR ©

‘Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ
Fo i

BERIBERE

WEANEBARD HE 2 FHAIRERIETEER
£ METZAEEERESSAEERaZER
SN WRMEH AT S 2 (5T - EE stz M skER
BMIEZBEEER - WREBHHEEE
R ARBHABTEEMTERZRET
A o

fiE 2R a2 BRINEZ AT REMERIE - 3k
EEFHARBRELIEZ G BERZA
ERERXBEE  BEROEEERINRZ ATEE
MERRRIBRSD - BRFRRKERZARENZE
BETRREFEELT EEAE  TEHES
SBEIE  BRIERERINGZ AR EREA
BRI ©

HMPBEREBERLE —T20H /ZERFER

85



86

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1

(o)

(p)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

(0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of returns.

Service fees
Service fees are recognised when the related services
are provided.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
is established.

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.
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1

(p)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Defined benefit retirement plan obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement plan is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present value and
the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount
rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligation. The calculation is
performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

In calculating the Group’s obligation in respect of a plan,
if any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss
exceeds ten percent of the greater of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets, that portion is recognised in profit or loss
over the expected average remaining working lives of
the employees participating in the plan. Otherwise, the
actuarial gain or loss is not recognised.

Where the calculation of the Group’s net obligation results
in a negative amount, the asset recognised is limited to
the net total of any cumulative unrecognised net actuarial
losses and past service costs and the present value of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Long service payments obligation

The Group's net obligation in respect of lump sum long
service amounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate is
the yield at the balance sheet date on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligation. The obligation is
calculated by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1

(p)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iv) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve). The equity amount is recognised
in the share-based compensation reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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(r)

(s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to
that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Income tax
(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

(i)  Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1

(s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

(iii)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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(s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

(iv)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

1

(t)

(u)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the
party are subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals (being members
of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/
or their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individual, and
post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For
example, segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than

one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, bank loans, tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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(a)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2005.

The accounting policies of the Group after the adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs have been summarised in note
1. The following sets out information on the significant changes
in accounting policies for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 36).

Restatement of prior period balances

The following tables disclose the adjustments that have been
made in accordance with the transitional provisions of the
respective HKFRSs to each of the line items in the consolidated
income statement and balance sheet and the Company’s
balance sheet and other significant related disclosure items as
previously reported for the year ended 31st March, 2005. The
effects of the changes in accounting policies on the reserves at
1st April, 2004 are disclosed in note 27.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Restatement of prior period balances (continued)

(i) Effect on the consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st

2 e EEREHE)
(a) EFInTHIAEER (E)
() HEEUBRRZFE
BE_TTRE=A=+RALFEZ&

March, 2005 HiEmaE
Effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease) in
profit for the year)
FER YL REERTIZ
2005 &/ (B5)
(as previously HKFRS 2 HKAS 17 HKAS 1 2005
reported) (note 2(c)) (note 2(d)) (note 2(e))  (as restated)
(BRUE (&% (BB
HEEAD Bt B
EH F17% B85
(RUMERH) (HEE2(c)) (BEE2(a)) (GEZIO) (E27)
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Turnover EEH 2,379,955 - - - 2,379,955
Cost of sales HERA (1,012,415) - - - (1,012,415)
Gross profit E 1,367,540 - - - 1,367,540
Other revenue HepA 31,369 - - - 31,369
Marketing, selling and BE - HER
distribution expenses PIHER (915,777) - - - (915,777)
Administrative expenses THER (159,302) - - - (159,302)
Other operating expenses Hit 2 EH (124,033) (2,765) - = (126,798)
Profit from operations TR 199,797 (2,765) - - 197,032
Finance costs BERA (9,042) - - - (9,042)
Restructuring cost BARA (24,782) - - - (24,782)
Wirite back of provision for AEINEE
compensation for ZBE
traffic accident B 765 - - - 765
Profit before taxation BRE A& 166,738 (2,765) - - 163,973
Income tax FisH (40,403) - - - (40,403)
Profit after taxation BB AR 126,335 (2,765) - - 123,570
Minority interests DYRRERS (2,588) - - 2,588 =
Profit for the year REERR 123,747 (2,765) - 2,588 123,570
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(a)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restatement of prior period balances (continued)

(i) Effect on the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st

March, 2005 (continued)

2 EIEEReH ()
(a) EIRTHIGEE (B
() HEEUBRERZTE
(&)
BE_TTRF=A=1T—HILFEZ
fraBmmE (B

Effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease) in

profit for the year)
FRR 8 REERTZ
2005 #m/ ("WD))
(as previously HKFRS 2 HKAS 17 HKAS 1 2005
reported) (note 2(c)) (note 2(d)) (note 2(e))  (as restated)
(BRUHK (&% (B%
HEEE) BiEa) =)
VL F17% 15
(BAE2H) (f&E2(c)) (MEE2(d)) (Hf&E2(e)) (E3)
$'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T
Attributable to: JEAE
Equity shareholders ARAIREE
of the Company FBA 123,747 (2,765) - - 120,982
Minority interests DERRER = - = 2,588 2,588
Profit for the year AEERT 123,747 (2,765) - 2,588 123,570
Earnings per share BRE
Basic EK 12.5 centsfll (0.3 centsfll) - - 12.2 centsfll
Diluted -3 12.4 centsl (0.3 centsflll) - - 121 centsfll
Other significant HipEE
disclosure items: WEER .
Staff costs ETRA (440,868) (2,765) - - (443,633)
Amortisation of interests in RELEHERE
leasehold land held for own fEERZHE
use under operating leases TR 2 B - - (209) - (209)
Depreciation - other assets FE-EEE (108,375) - 209 - (108,166)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EFBERSE (B
(a) Restatement of prior period balances (continued) (a) EFIpTERLEER (BB)
(i) Effect on the consolidated financial statements () HEEMEHRRFE
(continued) €=))
Consolidated balance sheet at 31st March, 2005 RE-ZETRF=ZA=+—HzZEEE
ERER

Effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease) in net assets)

2005  FBEzFE(FEEZEM/ (HY)  Redasification
(as previously HKFRS 2 HKAS 17 HKAS 1 of balance 2005
reported)  (note2(c) (note 2(d)) (note 2(e)) (note 34) (as restated)

(BRUE (5% (B8

WERA)  EHEA)  &ER) <3

28 75 E15 ENDE
(RLVEE®H)  (WE20)  (WE2d)  (FE2Ae)  (WE34) (E5))
$'000F T $'000F T $'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and 0% BER
equipment & 770,691 - (5,419) - (10,931) 754,341
Investment property REME - - - - 10,931 10,931
Interests in leasehold land RELERE
held for own use under REEERZ
operating leases HEiiER - - 5,419 - - 5,419
Other non-current assets HiEnaEE 41,639 - - - - 41,639
812,330 - - - - 812,330
Net current assets FREEE 511,707 - - - - 511,707
Total assets less current BEER
liabilities ViEJIENE 1,324,037 - - - - 1,324,037
Non-current liabilities FREE8E (28,656) - - - - (28,656)
Minority interests PERRER (47,669) - - 47,669 - -
Net assets FEE 1,247,712 - - 47,669 - 1,295,381
Capital and reserves ERR R
Attributable to equity KARMRE
shareholders of BEAA
the Company FEfh
Share capital AR 248,482 = = = - 248,482
Reserves &
— Share-based —ROERHE
compensation reserve e - 3,997 - - - 3,997
— Other reserves —HithihiE 363,058 - - - = 363,058
~ Retained profits —RE & 636,172 (3,997) - - - 632,175
1,247,712 - - - - 1,247,712
Attributable to minority  DERRRER
interests FEfh - - - 47,669 - 47,669
Total equity ERBHE 1,247,712 - - 47,669 - 1,295,381
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2

(a)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restatement of prior period balances (continued)

(ii)

Effect on the Company’s balance sheet at 31st

2 EFEEREH(E)

(a) EFIAIHiseR

(iy BHAAAR-BEREF=A=+-AZ

(43
(A=)

March, 2005 EEEERZVE
Effect of new
policy (increase/
(decrease)
in net assets)
HER2HE
(FEEZ
2005 #1in,/(82))  Reclassification
(as previously HKFRS 2 of balance 2005
reported) (note 2(c)) (note 34) (as restated)
(BREE
HEEAD
F25 ERENIE
(BUEER) (KEE2(c)) (F=E34) (E71)
$'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W% BERZHE 176,650 - (10,931) 165,719
Investment property REME - - 10,931 10,931
Other non-current assets Hi3EmgaE 314,494 - - 314,494
491,144 - - 491,144
Net current assets FREEE 752,828 - - 752,828
Total assets less current BERER
liabilities haaE 1,243,972 - - 1,243,972
Non-current liabilities FREaE (8,052) - - (8,052)
Net assets FEE 1,235,920 - - 1,235,920
Capital and reserves BAR A
Share capital fR7A 248,482 - - 248,482
Reserves ]
~ Share-based compensation —RIDER
reserve RiERHE - 3,997 - 3,997
— Other reserves —Eft it 382,535 - - 382,535
— Retained profits — R 604,903 (3,997) = 600,906
Total equity BREE 1,235,920 - - 1,235,920
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

2  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on
the current period
The following tables provide estimates of the extent to
which each of the line items in the consolidated income
statement and balance sheet and the company’s balance
sheet and other significant related disclosure items for the
year ended 31st March, 2006 is higher or lower than it
would have been had the previous policies still been applied
in the year, where it is practicable to make such estimates.

(i) Estimated effect on the consolidated financial
statements
Estimated effect on the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2006

2 ETEERE5H ()
(b) EFEERSEHAME 2 (5T
E7

TREFIBRESRMBESBER @ ;HER
ECERRFA=ST HIEFESFAERR
RRBEEBBRUNRARFZEEREBRAS
IR A RHE M 2R EIRE B - A A2 AN
gom Dz fhat &8 (WA fEED) ©

() BESHBHRT2MT
7

HEBE_TERNFA=+T—RHLEFER
BREWMERZEFTE

Estimated effect of new policy (increase/

(decrease) in profit for the year)

FRE 2 fhtH 8 (REERRZEM/ (5D))

HKFRS 2 HKAS 17 HKAS 1 HKAS 39
(note 2(c)) (note 2(d)) (note 2(e)) (note 2(f) Total
(G (&8 (&8 (&
HREEA) SEHER) SHER) SR
25 175 15 308
(H&E2(c) (HEE2(d)) (H&E2(e)) (H&E2() L
$000F 7 §000F 7T $/000T 7L $'000F ¢ $'000F 7T
Other revenue ELUN - - - 53 53
Other operating expenses b= B (2,634) - - - (2,634)
Profit after taxation BH &R (2,634) - - 53 (2,581)
Minority interests DERRES - - 12,949 - 12,949
Profit for the year KEERF (2,634) - 12,949 53 10,368
Attributable to: FEf :
Equity shareholders YN ¢
of the Company FEA (2,634) - - 53 (2,581)
Minority interests DERRES - - 12,949 - 12,949
Profit for the year KEEER (2,634) - 12,949 53 10,368
Earnings per share BREMN
Basic HA (0.3 centsfl) - - - (0.3 centsfll)
Diluted e (0.3 centsfll) - - - (0.3 centsfll)
Other significant HitFE
disclosure items: KEER :
Staff costs BImMA (2,634) = = = (2,634)
Amortisation of interests in REGEHE
leasehold land held for REEERZ
own use under MELiER L
operating leases e - (216) - - (216)
Depreciation - other assets FE-HivEE - 216 - - 216
Change in fair value of RAAEHBER
financial asset at fair EEINN IR
value through profit ZEREREN
or loss AREET) - - - 53 53
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on

the current period (continued)

0]

Estimated effect on the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Estimated effect on the consolidated balance sheet at

31st March, 2006

2 B BEREH(E)

(b) EETHERESBHAMB MG

B/ 4B (435
7 (ﬁ‘F‘/‘

HERSMBEIREK 2 fhet

()

FE B

H_TTF=RA=1+—HZHREEAERA

(EESPALTY

=214
oa

Estimated effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease) in net assets)

HBRz AR (BEEZEM (HD))

HKFRS2  HKAS17  HKAS1  HKAS 39
(note 2(c)) (note 2(d)) (note 2(e)) (note 2(f)) Total
(BB (B# (BB (B#®
wEEAD)  EFER)  EHERA)  gEHEAD
255 EAT5E F155 53955
(Mf=E2(c))  (PitaE2(d))  (BiHaE2(e))  (RfRE2() Fot ol
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and Mz - BER
equipment B - (5,364) = = (5,364)
Interests in leasehold land  RIELEHEE
held for own use under  #HHEEEAZ
operating leases THE T kg - 5,364 - - 5,364
Bank deposits RITIFR = = = (15,618) (15,618)
Other financial asset Hit e mEE - - - 13,922 13,922
_ — - (1,696) (1,696)
Minority interests DHRRER - - 58,566 - 58,566
Net assets FEE - - 58,566 (1,696) 56,870
Capital and reserves ERK
Attributable to equity ~ ANAFRRE
shareholders BFBEA
of the Company FEfL
Reserves @t
— Share premium — & iEE 712 - - - 712
— Share-based — AR B
compensation fE
reserve it 5,919 - - - 5,919
— Retained profits —{REB & A (6,631) - - (1,696) (8,327)
_ — - (1,696) (1,696)
Attributable to minority LERRERS
interests FE(E - - 58,566 - 58,566
Total equity ERBEE - - 58,566 (1,696) 56,870

HMPBEREBERLE —T20H /ZERFER

99



100

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(b)

Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on

the current period (continued)

(if)

Estimated effect on the Company’s balance sheet

at 31st March, 2006

2 EIEEREH(E)

(b) EETHERSEBHAIMB M

S (435
=7 A0

(i) HEAQXAR-_ZZEARFE=A=T+—HZE

ERERZMAFTE

Estimated effect of new policy
(increase/(decrease) in net assets)

FBGR 2 fh5t &
CBEEZEM (RD))
HKFRS 2 HKAS 39
(note 2(c)) (note 2(f)) Total
(BB (EHB
W ZER gEHEL)
255 393K
(¥zE2(c)) (BFEE2()) zE
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Non-current assets FEREEE
Bank deposits RITER = (15,618) (15,618)
Other financial asset HEhemEE - 13,922 13,922
Net assets BEE - (1,696) (1,696)
Capital and reserves BEARKf#HE
Reserves ]
— Share premium — R (E 712 - 712
— Share-based — R EAfE
compensation reserve fERE 5,919 - 5,919
— Retained profits —(REB & (6,631) (1,696) (8,327)
Total equity TR YAEE - (1,696) (1,696)
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(d)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee share option schemes (HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”)

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when employees
(which term includes directors) were granted share options over
shares in the Company. If the employees chose to exercise the
options, the nominal amount of share capital and share
premium were credited only to the extent of the option’s

exercise price receivable.

With effect from 1st April, 2005, in order to comply with HKFRS
2, the Group has adopted a new policy for employee share
options. Under the new policy, the Group recognises the fair
value of such share options as an expense with a corresponding
increase recognised in a share-based compensation reserve
within equity. Further details of the new policy are set out in
note 1(p)(iv).

This new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
with comparatives restated, except that the Group has taken
advantage of the transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 2,
under which the new recognition and measurement policies
have not been applied to the following grants of options:

(i) all options granted to employees on or before 7th
November, 2002; and

(i) all options granted to employees after 7th November,
2002 but which had vested before 1st April, 2005.

The adjustments for each financial statement line affected for
the years ended 31st March, 2005 and 2006 are set out in
notes 2(a) and (b).

Details of the share option schemes are set out in note 28.

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use (HKAS
17 “Leases”)

In prior years, all interests in leasehold land held for own use
were presented together with the buildings situated on that
land and were stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses.

2
(c)

(d)
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ZE1(p)iv) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

2

(d)

(e)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasehold land and buildings held for own use (HKAS
17 "Leases”) (continued)

With effect from 1st April, 2005, in order to comply with HKAS
17, the Group has adopted a new policy for leasehold land
and buildings held for own use. Under the new policy, the
leasehold interest in the land held for own use is accounted
for as being held under an operating lease, where the fair value
of the interest in any buildings situated on the leasehold land
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold interest in the land at the time the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee, or at the date of construction of those buildings, if later.

Any buildings held for own use which are situated on such
land leases continue to be presented as property, plant and
equipment. Further details of the new policy are set out in
notes 1(e) and (f).

The above new accounting policy has been adopted
retrospectively. The adjustments for each financial statement
line item affected for the years ended 31st March, 2005 and
2006 are set out in notes 2(a) and (b).

Minority interests (HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements” and HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements”)

In prior years, minority interests at the balance sheet date were
presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately from
liabilities and as deduction from net assets. Minority interests
in the results of the Group for the year were also separately
presented in the consolidated income statement as a deduction
before arriving at the profit attributable to shareholders (the
equity shareholders of the Company).

With effect from 1st April, 2005, in order to comply with HKAS
1 and HKAS 27, the Group has changed its accounting policy
relating to the presentation of minority interests. Under the
new policy, minority interests are presented as part of equity,
separately from interests attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Further details of the new policy are set out
in note 1(c). These changes in presentation have been applied
retrospectively with comparatives restated as showed in
note 2(a).
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(9

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (HKAS 32 “Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”)

In prior years, structured deposit contract with bank entered
into by the Group was classified as bank deposits and stated
at cost less provision.

With effect from 1st April, 2005, and in accordance with HKAS
39, such structured deposit is classified as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss and carried at fair value.
Changes in the fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Further
details of the new policy are set out in note 1(k).

This change in accounting policy was adopted by way of an
opening balance adjustment to retained profits as at 1st April,
2005. The adjustment includes re-designation of the structured
deposit with a carrying value of $15,618,000 at 31st March,
2005 as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss at
1st April, 2005. As at that date, such financial asset was restated
to the fair value of $13,869,000 by way of an opening balance
adjustment to reduce retained profits by $1,749,000.
Comparative amounts have not been restated as this is
prohibited by the transitional arrangements in HKAS 39.

The adjustments for each financial statement line item affected
for the year ended 31st March, 2006 are set out in note 2(b).

Definition of related parties (HKAS 24 “Related party
disclosures”)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures, the definition of related parties as disclosed in note
1(t) has been expanded to clarify that related parties include
entities that are under the significant influence of a related
party that is an individual (i.e. key management personnel,
significant shareholders and/or their close family members) and
post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group. The clarification of the definition of related parties
has not resulted in any material changes to the previously
reported disclosures of related party transactions nor has it
had any material effect on the disclosures made in the current
period, as compared to those that would have been reported
had Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 20, Related
party disclosures, still been in effect.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

3 TURNOVER 3 EXEH
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and AEBEZITEXBRUEERHEHERRD R
sale of food and beverages. #Rim

Turnover represents the gross sales value less returns, to EERENE-EHEEM I HEEBER
third parties. RE -
4 OTHER REVENUE 4 Hebug A
2006 2005
$'000 F 7t $'000 F7T
Interest income R B A 12,474 5,255
Service fee AR5 E 31,465 19,204
Rental income iESAL N 1,748 1,296
Change in fair value of financial RAREEEHE
asset at fair value through RERERZ 2/
profit or loss BEZAREZS 53 =
Sundry income FETEUL A 5,767 5,614
51,507 31,369

104  Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06



5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5  BBATRR
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRATRFE IR, GEA)
2006 2005
(restated) (E27%1))
$'000 F 7T $'000 F7T
(a) Finance costs: (@) BEMK :
Interest on bank loans BITERZFE 7,951 8,349
Finance charges on obligations BEREER
under finance leases Z P76 %E F 421 693
8,372 9,042
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIRKA :
Contributions to defined FEMTRIRETE
contribution retirement plans AR 18,237 16,809
Expense/(income) recognised in UTEEZERRER,
respect of: (WA
— retirement gratuities — BRe
(note 17(c)ii) GEAED) 1,125 1,008
— long service payments — RERE®
(note 17(d)(i)) (F=E17(d)ii)) (406) (207)
Retirement costs ROREKAR 18,956 17,610
Equity settled share-based LARR 13 R EL e
payment expenses Xz BA 2,634 2,765
Salaries, wages and other B - T&REA
benefits &7 425,396 423,258
446,986 443,633
(c) Other items: () HEMIEE :
Amortisation of interests in BIFCEHERS
leasehold land held for own {EERAZEE T
use under operating leases T o O B B 216 209
Depreciation e
— assets leased out under — UK ERE
operating leases iz EE 526 527
— assets acquired under — UmEHE
finance leases BAZEE 3,696 4,163
— other assets — Hitn&E 106,975 108,166
Impairment losses VEREV SR
— trade and other receivables — FEURBR TR R E A R U X (816) 616
— property, plant and — Y% - BER
equipment Bl - 15,020
Auditors’ remuneration ZERET BN
— audit services — BZIR 2,778 2,476
— tax services — BEIR 433 504
— other services — HbpRTE 1,823 33
Operating lease charges: KETHEEMA
minimum lease payments SEBERRK
— hire of properties — Y= 37,527 34,912
— hire of factory machinery — TAF Thnises
and equipment N 2,270 2,558
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BB K&E
plant and equipment o) 7= 831 1,803
Net foreign exchange loss RSN 518 1,874 81

HEMDEBEERERAT —2F

B/ BREER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

6  RESTRUCTURING COST
During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the Group had
undergone a restructuring of its operations in the United States
of America which included the exit from its Refrigerated Soymilk
business, the consolidation of production facilities in the plant
in Ayer, Massachusetts and the closure of the production plant
in Burke, California. The restructuring cost comprised:

AR
REZ-_ZTRF=-A=1t—"HLFER &K
Ii%ﬂﬁb”\\%lz%i& R BEERERED
X7 - BAMROIE LR RE AR A ERE A
&Eﬁ%ﬂﬂd‘\‘\BurkeE@iﬁﬂ?ﬁ% o BEHKARL

2005
$'000 F7T
Impairment loss on property, plant M - BERERHZ
and equipment (note 15(a)) REEE (FiiFE15() 15,020
Severance payments BEE 2,363
Compensation for early termination RELKIEEHRSH
of refrigerated soymilk copack PENIRHEZ
agreement B (E 4,679
Provision for the operating lease Burke £EKE BRI &
charges for the Burke production MELERES H
plant after its closure FiER 522
Others HA 2,198
24,782

7  WRITE BACK OF PROVISION FOR COMPENSATION FOR
TRAFFIC ACCIDENT

This represented the write back of over-provision for
compensation for traffic accident relating to one of the
Company’s subsidiaries, Vitasoy USA Inc., which occurred in
2000. During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the injury
claim was settled and an over-provision of $765,000 was
written back to the income statement.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06
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8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 fHmeEmBRZ
INCOME STATEMENT Frig i
(@) Income tax in the consolidated (a) HZAEBEZHERAZ
income statement represents: P8Rk ¢
2006 2005
$'000 Tt $'000 F7t
Current tax A EAFRIE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBRAEH
Provision for the year FREE 36,992 38,544
Over-provision in respect of NEFEZ
prior years RREEE (145) (103)
36,847 38,441
Current tax A EAFRIE
- Outside Hong Kong — BB LM E
Provision for the year FRNEE 3,920 1,039
Under-provision in respect of EFEZ
prior years BETR 396 124
4,316 1,163
Deferred tax IRIERIR
Origination and reversal of RE k#EE
temporary differences e R (785) 1,154
Effect of increase in tax rate EfiE LA
on deferred tax HHRER I
balance 2R - (355)
(785) 799
40,378 40,403

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5%
(2005: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
tax jurisdictions.

One of the Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China enjoyed a tax relief of 50% reduction in the income tax
rate for a period of 3 years commencing 1st January, 2002.
Such tax relief expired on 31st December, 2004 and from 1st
January, 2005 onwards, the subsidiary is subject to a tax rate
of 15%.

B NSRBI % FE 2 (AT FERRBUR A A
17.5% (ZZZRF : 17.5%) ZBEAE - HF
LASN [ BB A B 2 IR AR A BN R ALAE
BERERZRTHEH

AAREP—ERhEARLMBESMEAR
BT _F— - HEr=FZHMERHE
B Z IR © IR E R S TME+
“A=+—HER B=TTRF-A—HE -
B RIZAIRN 5 % T R B o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

8 MRABERBRZME

(&)

by BEXHESFEANUBABRERFEZ

AR

2006 2005
(restated) (E2%1))
$'000 F7© $'000 F7t
Profit before taxation BREE AR 225,403 163,973
Notional tax on profit before REBARIERA
taxation, calculated at the EEREAD
rates applicable to profits FEBTRETE
in the tax jurisdictions R A A
concerned Z I 36,170 16,122
Tax effect of non-deductible Ik 5 gind
expenses MG 1,767 2,344
Tax effect of non-taxable FERBIUAZ
revenue B2 (1,814) (1,554)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIEREARERZ B
not recognised BB BB 4,004 23,825
Tax effect of increase in tax B A EHRERIR
rate on deferred tax balance o7 - (355)
Under-provision in respect of LA ERITE
prior years BETR 251 21
Actual tax expense EREBIES 40,378 40,403
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of RIEEBCARNEADFE 16115 K EMRAIEE 2
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules is =EMemT -
as follows:
2006
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
#ig
BER A B HRGA
EZhe BUREA IR i Mt EBOAR @i
$000F 7 §000FT $000F T $000F 7 $000F 7 $000F 7 $000F %
Executive Directors grES
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO ERELE 153 3,598 2,712 126 6,589 636 7,225
Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing [yt
CHAN (note (i) (B30 54 3,143 1,005 17 4379 537 4916
Mr. Eric Fat YU RELE 76 1,434 308 2 1,910 177 2,087
Mr. John Shek-hung LAU BBt 76 1,898 387 107 2,468 187 2,655
Mr. Fransis Ming-yin THEEE
KONG (note (ii) (Rszx() 2 556 936 38 1,532 - 1,532
Non-executive Directors FunES
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO ERANT 84 - - - 84 - 84
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO ERERNT 84 - - - 84 - 84
Independent Non-executive BUFHT
Directors g2
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI~ ZEEE+ 28 - - - 28 - 28
Mr. lain F. BRUCE hEthE 255 - - - 255 - 255
Mr. Chi-kian SHIU BERsE 250 - - - 250 - 250

1,282 10,629 5,348 540 17,799 1,537 19,336
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 BEEME (B
2005
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
#e
BHR BEER B HRHA
E=he BNER ZIEAL Eii 25 NGt ERNAR @it
(restated) (Z51) (restated) () (restated) (E51)
§'000F T §'000F T §'000F T §000F T §000F 7T $000F T $000F T
Executive Directors #i7Es
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO ERERE 165 3,631 2471 149 6,416 573 6,939
Mr. Eric Fat YU FERE 76 1413 mn m 1,871 166 2037
Mr. John Shek-hung LAU iy 76 1,778 419 129 2402 185 2,587
Mr. Fransis Ming-yin KONG TEERE 76 2,160 792 160 3,188 354 3,542
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Frank Yau-yee LO (note (i) BR354 (s (i) 4 - - - 4 - 4
Ms. Myma Mo-ching LO BRant 84 - - - 84 - 84
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ing LO BERuT 84 - - - 84 - 84
Independent Non-executive B33
Directors B2
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-poll ~ ZEEET 255 - - - 255 - 255
Mr. lain F. BRUCE it-awid 282 = = = 282 - 282
Mr. Chi-kian SHIU [t 148 - - - 148 - 148
1292 8,982 3,953 549 14,776 1,278 16,054

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the Directors under the Company’s share
option schemes. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(p)(iv).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option schemes” in the Report of the
Directors and note 28.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Mr. Ambrose Kam-shing CHAN was appointed as an
Executive Director on 11th July, 2005.

(i) Mr. Fransis Ming-yin KONG resigned as an Executive Director
on 18th April, 2005.

(iii)  Mr. Frank Yau-yee LO resigned as a Non-executive Director
on 19th January, 2005.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2005 (restated): four) are Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect
of the other two (2005 (restated): one) individuals is as follows:

10

EEME (B
PE -

i) RBBEER-_ZFZTRFLAT—BREZRER
BITESE -

@iy ITREERER-TZRFMA+/\BEERT
BF-

(i) BRBEER-ZFZRF—ATNLBEEEIEH
TEE -

EEMEAL

ERZREMEALH =2 (CETHF (&
) : OB) RES - KEZMESNHEIREE
Hepms (C2TAF (&)  —B)&EHEA
T BRI

2006 2005

(restated) (E2%1))

$'000 T3t $'000 Tt

Salaries and other emoluments e MEMEE 4,944 1,608
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 113 33
Discretionary bonuses BB 2 TEAT 1,128 955
Share-based payments LARR 19 A BE A 51 170 154
6,355 2,750

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the individuals under the Company’s share
option schemes. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(p)(iv). The principal
terms of the share option schemes are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option schemes” in the Report of the
Directors and note 28.

LARRAD IR ERE RN (NSRS IR B A R B 2 BB I iRt &)
BT ERALZBEENGRHEE - LERE
Z (BETHRIEMEE1(0)(v) T B AN 5 B 5t AR 1 5
ERE 2 NRRZ ZIRMH TR M E - BBRHE
Az ERERERETSREE BRES
—ER R MiEE28 R 2 5E -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 BReMeAL
(continued) (&)
The emoluments of the two (2005 (restated): one) individuals ME (ZZZRF (&) - —RB)HZ=Me ALz
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: B T LA T 485 -
2006 2005
(restated) (E27%1))
Number A 8 Number A £
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,0017c23,000,0007T - 1
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,0017C % 3,500,0007T 2 -
11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 11 RATRERSE AEMN
THE COMPANY Al
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of AR RRAERE AEIEAR & & FBREEIIALRA
the Company includes a profit of $134,963,000 (2005 BIEAFS R 205 F)134,963,0007 (Z T RHF
(restated): $98,673,000) which has been dealt with in the (&%) : 98,673,0007T) °
financial statements of the Company.
Recondiliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit i RN B ANF R 2 $IER
for the year:
2006 2005
(restated) (&%)
$'000 F 7t $'000 F7T
Amount of consolidated profit BEIARR AR Z
attributable to equity AN/
shareholders dealt with in the FB Al
Company’s financial statements kRE AR 134,963 98,673
Final dividends from subsidiaries R & Mt B A &) _E— B8
attributable to the profits of the FEEEM - WRAREE
previous financial year, approved HERZZ
and paid during the year RHARR S 5,774 5,058
Company’s profit for the year RRF) 2 ARNEEm
(note 27(b)) (FizE27(b)) 140,737 103,731
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(a)

(b)

DIVIDENDS
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

12 BB

(@) EBNTFARAREFEAZ

Company attributable to the year TEERE
2006 2005
$'000 F 7t $'000 FiT
Interim dividend declared and BEEIR&E X
paid of 2.8 cents per HERRR R AR E AR 2 81l
ordinary share (ZZThF : 8K
(2005: 2.8 cents per EEA%2.81l)
ordinary share) (note 27) (Fft=E27) 28,091 27,725
Final dividend proposed after REEE BEEIR
the balance sheet date REARR S
of 6.7 cents per ordinary Bk EARe. 71l
share (2005: 5.7 cents (CZZRF : §%
per ordinary share) AR5, 710) 67,370 57,105
Special dividend proposed REEE BB ER
after the balance sheet date B RIAR S
of 10.0 cents per ordinary B mAZ10.011
share (2005: 10.0 cents (ZEZTRF : 5%
per ordinary share) TSEAL10.011) 100,552 100,183
196,013 185,013
The final and special dividends proposed after the balance sheet RS BNk 2 REARFRIR S AR AR
date have not been recognised as liabilities at the balance HEHZBE-
sheet date.
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) BRE-BHFE  IRAKFE
Company attributable to the previous financial year, HERZAFADBRERFE A
approved and paid during the year ZBRE
2006 2005
$'000 F7© $'000 F7t
Final dividend in respect of BN E—MHREE -
the previous financial year, WRZREEHEAE K
approved and paid during A2 REARR B
the year, of 5.7 cents per BREEARS. 7
ordinary share (ZZTHF : 8K
(2005: 5.7 cents per @A 710)
ordinary share) (note 27) (f7E27) 57,139 56,395
Special dividend in respect of B E—REE
the previous financial year, WRZREEHEAE K
approved and paid during A2 FERIAR S
the year, of 10.0 cents per B A%E A 10.010
ordinary share (ZZTRHF : 8K
(2005: 5.0 cents per T3 ARs.01l)
ordinary share) (note 27) (f7E27) 100,244 49,469
157,383 105,864

EMPDEBEEERAF
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$172,076,000 (2005 (restated): $120,982,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,001,624,000 ordinary shares
(2005: 989,658,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,

calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

13 BREF
() BREARF

172,076,0007C (ZZ =%
)&ZKEFWE%%

EER IR B

FREARET J%E%J*“Z!S"‘TH%E%%M@E?E%U
7%l)) : 120,982,000
B2 hnE T R
1,001,624,0008% (= ZZ 4 : 989,658,000/ &
B FHE o EERZIMEF RS2 ET

2006 2005
Number of shares Number of shares
B&®E RF%A
‘000F & ‘000F %
Issued ordinary shares REAA—BZBEETERR
at 1st April (note 27(c)) (Ft5E27(0)) 993,928 985,828
Effect of share options EATE Z fEfsctE
exercised E0) = 7,696 3,830
Weighted average number of REELBR 2
ordinary shares for the year I AR
(note (b)) (Hf¥ (b)) 1,001,624 989,658

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$172,076,000 (2005 (restated): $120,982,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,008,726,000 ordinary shares
(2005: 996,448,000 ordinary shares) after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated

as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b) BREERF

ARz TG E (

GREE AR THRIE AR R g A A B R A
172,076,000 (ZZZ R4 (F%) : 120,982,000
7T) BshETE BT EE AT
R & 2 m AR hNAE T IO RRE01,008,726,000%
(ZZZTRHF : 996,448,0000 AL 51 E o L@
ARz I F YRR & (%) 25 E T ¢

Rz FEEN

2006 2005
Number of shares Number of shares
RHBE iRt EE
‘000F ‘000F &
Weighted average number of NEELBR 2
ordinary shares for the year LRSS e
(note (a)) (GEE)) 1,001,624 989,658
Effect of deemed issue of BERERBEARRFZ
ordinary shares under et 2
the Company'’s share L‘Aﬂféﬁf
option schemes for nil BITEBR
consideration a2 7,102 6,790
Weighted average number REFELBIRZ
of ordinary shares (diluted) Ik AR 8
for the year #8) 1,008,726 996,448
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
geographical segments. Information relating to geographical
segments based on the location of assets is chosen because
this is in line with the Group’s internal management information
reporting system.

No business segment analysis of the Group is presented as all
the Group’s turnover and trading result are generated from
the manufacture and sale of food and beverages.

14

S

DEERTIFAEE 2 R D EP2IR o ARIE
BEMAED 2R BRI ANEE 2
REFERERRIRES - BUCERI AN T2
HEMZE

W

AR D R S SR
RREAGRRE HMIERSEBAB
ath o

Australia and

Hong Kong North America Mainland China New Zealand Unallocated Consolidated
B TEH REAE BHRSER #ARZER )
006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
(etated) () (estated) (Z5) (estate) 7).
POEE  SOOFE SRR SONTR  SOFR SRR SONR SOOFE SRR SONTR  SWOFR  SONFR
Revene from TEjERR
external customers A 1418750 1331417 35713 41489 509078 434897 206866 148812 - - 2520409 2,379,955
Otherrevenvefiom — REARALZ
external parties A 6,120 5854 289 1249 257 19,011 - - 12,521 5255 51,507 31369
Total revenue B\ 144812 1337211 386002 416078 541649 503908 206866 148812 12,521 525 2571916 241134
Segment result ikt 3048 210309 (19583)  (3682) 55907 55,803 26,49 9626 2597 238916
Unalocated operating ~~ KAELE#
incomeandexpenses — WARER (8219 (@884
Profitfrom operations &5 BB 197,03
Finance costs BEAL 370 (004
Restructuring cost £zl - - - () - - - - LY )]
Wite back of provision ~ REES1E(E
forcompensatinfor 2%
traffc accident ] - - - 765 - - - - - 765
Income fax FiEh (40378)  (40403)
Proftfor the year p¥:3i] 18505 13510
Deprecition and KER
amortsation for &R
the year BE 48701 48614 18,949 318 0982 298% 10821 11,367 M43 113065
Impairment of Wik
—trade and other ~UER
receivables L (849) 215 - 1 3 636 - (3%2) (816) 616
—pioperty plantend 1% - i
equipment e - - - 1500 - - - - - 1500
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

14 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Segmentasels  AHEE
Undlocated assets ~~ #ATZEE

Total asefs GEE

Seqment abiites 7%
Unalloated libities %3 28%

Total abltes Baf

Copital expenditure ~ REFES
ncuned duing the ~ Z&%
year i

Hong Kong
Bt

2006 2005
$000F 70 $0077E

628,559 601,875

165,793 144 064

{125 34384

North America
HEH

2006 2005
§0007 70 $00077

B13% 37581

32,010 41,671

3205 10,581

Revenue from external customers by location of customers is

14 ZE|E

Mainland China
hEAR
2006 2005
$000F 7 $000F

349,813 317,745

122,088 100326

9512 3332

==
(#&)

Australia and New Zealand
BHRAER

2006 2005
$000F 70 $0077E

182310 179461

21,6% 15,207

9431 5025

Consolidated
e
2006 2005
$000F T $00077

1398037 13360662

400,983 459739

17900 179401

3,58 301328

148,501 199,692

490,086 501,020

64,273 53281

VAR FifE R 73 30 2 2k B SN B R AT

as follows:
2006 2005
$'000 ¥t $'000 Tt
Hong Kong BB 1,608,346 1,546,954
North America 1M 440,239 467,501
Mainland China AR B K 170,653 133,085
Australia and New Zealand SBEOM K 3 P8 R 213,751 156,369
Others H AR 87,420 76,046
2,520,409 2,379,955
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15 FIXED ASSETS 15 BEE&E
(@) The Group (@) *KE
Interests in
Property, plant and equipment easehold
% BERZE land held
Land and Factory ~ Fixtures, for own use
buildings  machinery  furniture under Total
held for and  and office Motor Investment  operating fixed
ownuse equipment equipment vehicles  Sub-total  property |eases assets
i
58 kB BEREE
fFEAN  IREES BRAR BRZHE e
THRET Rkt BOERE RE Nt REWE twER  EEGR
(restated) (E71) (restated) (EF1) ~ (restated) (E1) ~(restated) (E51)
$000FT  $o00Fm  $o00Fm  So00Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000FT  §000F%
Cost: BAE:
At st Apri, 2004 RZZZMENA-A 547,123 945,121 132,415 60,585 1,685,844 22,698 7119 1,715,661
Exchange adjustments A% 1,680 2,013 61 3 3,757 - 4 3,761
Additions HE 229 34,666 11,029 7358 53,282 - - 53,282
Disposals & (1,809) (75,627) (11,213) (4,086) (92,735) = = (92,735)
Reclassification Eipd (14,115) 14,115 - - - - - -
At 31st March, 2005 RZZTRE=A=1—-H 533708 920,288 132,292 63860 1,650,148 22,698 7,123 1,679,969
Accumulated amortisation, Zat#s5
depreciation and TER
impairment losses: BERE
At st Apri, 2004 RZZZMENA-A 129,899 573,395 98,671 54,573 856,538 11,240 1,495 869,273
Exchange adjustments % 139 697 3 3 872 - - 872
Charge for the year TEEHE 17,655 79,810 11,961 2,903 112,329 527 209 113,065
Impairment loss for the year  AFERERE - 15,020 - - 15,020 - - 15,020
Written back on disposal &R (1,020) (73,166) (10,900) (3,866) (88,952) - - (88,952)
Reclassification EHE (1,057) 1,057 - - - - - -
At 31st March, 2005 RZZZRE=A=T—H 145616 596,813 99,765 53,613 895,807 11,767 1,704 909,278
Net book value: IREE -
At 31st March, 2005 RZZZRE=A=T-H 388,09 323 475 32,527 10,247 754,341 10,931 5419 770,691
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

15  FIXED ASSETS (continued) 15 BEEEE@E)
(@) The Group (continued) (a) A&EE@E)
Impairment loss BB S

IR E B RS E S B R s B AR iy i SRR 2
ETYR  BEARBZERAEMREZSEE
ZEFHHERERT - ZFREHEDAAGES
BaRRT e (=AM (fiEEe) -

The impairment loss represented the write down of the carrying
value of certain property, plant and equipment in respect of
the operations in the United States of America to the estimated
net disposal proceeds or nil, as these fixed assets would either
be disposed of or retired from active use as a result of
restructuring. The impairment loss recognised was included in
“Restructuring cost” in the consolidated income statement

118

(note 6).
Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
0% BERZE land held
Land and Factory  Fixtures, for own use
buildings  machinery  furniture under Total
held for and  and office Motor Investment  operating fixed
ownuse equipment equipment vehicles  Sub-total  property |eases assets
RiESE
b %E. HERERE
fEERN  IEME HRR BRZEE e
THRET Rkfe  BAERE RE Nt RENE tHEE  EESH
(restated) (E51) (restated) (Z31)) (restated) (E5) (restated) (E51))
§000FL  $000F7T §000FL  $000F7T §000FL  $000FrT  $000FT  §$'000FT
Cost: BAE:
At 1st April, 2005 RZZZhENA-A 533,708 920,283 132,292 63,860 1,650,148 22,698 7123 1,679,969
Bichange adjustments [} 8% 2874) 108 308 216 (1,268) - 214 (1,054)
Additions AE 3,502 38,215 13,459 9,097 64,273 - - 64,273
Disposals i (297)  (19329) (6,051) (3807)  (29.484) - - (29,484)
At 315t March, 2006 RIBERE=ZA=T-H 534,039 940,256 140,008 69,366 1,683,669 22,698 7337 1,713,704
Accumulated amortisation, T -
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1st April, 2005 145,616 596,813 99,765 53,613 895,807 11,767 1,704 909,278
Exchange adjustments BRAE 516 3428 266 159 4,369 - 53 4422
Charge for the year TEERE 18,468 73,587 14,928 3,688 110,671 526 216 11413
Written back on disposal &R (158) (18,474) (5,690) (3,719) (28,041) - - (28,041)
At 31st March, 2006 RZZEAE=A=1—H 164442 655,354 109,269 53,741 982,806 12,293 1973 997,072
Net book value: BERE :
At 31st March, 2006 RZZEAE=A=1—H 369597 284,902 30,739 15,625 700,863 10,405 5364 716,632
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15 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) The Company

15
(b)

EEEE (&)
/NG|

Property, plant and equipment

N BERERE
Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings machinery furniture Total
held for and and office Motor Investment fixed
ownuse  equipment  equipment vehicles Sub-total property assets
&R B
fEBAN TH#E BRR EE
THREF Rt BAZRE RE it REME EEA
(restated) (E7)) (restated) (Z7))  (restated) (E51)
$000F §000F 7T §000F T §000F $000F 7 $000F 7 00077
Cost: HAR:
At 1st Apri, 2004 RZZZMENA—-A 141,773 338,038 64,211 49,518 593,540 22,698 616,238
Additions WE = 13,655 2,227 6,307 22,189 = 22,189
Disposals L& - 2,511) (1,927) (3,139) (7,577) - (7,577)
At31stMarch, 2005 ~ RZFERE=A=1-H 141,773 349,182 64,511 52,686 608,152 22,698 630,850
Accumulated Zat
depreciation: mE:
At 1st Apri, 2004 RZFZMENA—-A 42,832 213523 53,675 45,578 415,608 11,240 426,848
Charge for the year AEEHE 4213 23,802 4,007 2123 34,145 521 34,672
Written back on disposal ~ (HEEHE - (2,289) (1,909) (3122) (7,320) - (7,320)
At31stMarch, 2005 ~ R-FERE=A=1-H 47,045 295,036 55,773 44,579 442,433 11,767 454,00
Net book value: REFE:
At31stMarch, 2005 ~ R-FERE=A=1-H 94,728 54,146 8,738 8,107 165,719 10,931 176,650
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

15  FIXED ASSETS (continued) 15 BEEEE@E)
(b) The Company (continued) (b) AAFEE)

Property, plant and equipment

% BERRE
Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings ~ machinery furniture Total
held for and and office Motor Investment fixed
ownuse  equipment  equipment vehicles Sub-total property assets
58 %8
@=L THhrzE BRR e
THREF RRfE  BAERGB RE Ihat RENE i1 )
(restated) (Z5) (restated) (E71])  (restated) (E51))
$000F $1000F 70 §1000F 70 $000F 70 $000F 7 $000F T $000F T
Cost: A :
At st April, 2005 RZEZhEMA-A 141,773 349,182 64,511 52,686 608,152 22,698 630,850
Additions AE - 14,351 2,128 7,702 24,181 - 24,181
Disposals hE = (8,643) (3,021) (2,882) (14,546) - (14,546)
At 315t March, 2006 RZEE E=A=1-A 141,773 354,890 63,618 57,506 617,787 22,698 640,485
Accumulated gt
depreciation: HE:
At st April, 2005 RZEZhEMA-A 47,045 295,036 55773 44,579 442,433 11,767 454,200
Charge for the year TEERE 4213 22,728 3,845 3,100 33,886 526 34,412
Written back on disposal i EEFEE = (8,104) (3,014) (2,874) (13,992) - (13,992)
At 315t March, 2006 RZEE E=A=1-A 51,258 309,660 56,604 44,805 462,327 12,293 474,620
Net book value: IREEE
At 315t March, 2006 RZEE E=A=1-A 90,515 45,230 7,014 12,701 155,460 10,405 165,865
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15
()

(d)

FIXED ASSETS (continued) 15 BEEEE (&)
The analysis of net book value of properties is (c) MFEZEREFEZDM
as follows: W
The Group The Company
REE AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
In Hong Kong TR
— medium-term leases — FREIFR LY 220,430 229,343 100,920 105,659
Outside Hong Kong BBEAIME R
— freehold — KA 106,642 115,858 - =
— medium-term leases — FREIFR LY 34,397 35,401 - -
— short-term leases — RHIFAD 23,897 23,840 - -
385,366 404,442 100,920 105,659
Representing: (e
Land and buildings held REEERZ
for own use T RAEF 369,597 388,092 90,515 94,728
Investment property wEYZE 10,405 10,931 10,405 10,931
Interests in leasehold land BB EHERFE
held for own use under ERZHEE
operating leases TR 5,364 5,419 - -
385,366 404,442 100,920 105,659

Fixed assets held under finance leases

In addition to the leasehold land classified as being held under
finance leases, the Group leases factory machinery and
equipment under finance leases expiring in four years. At the
end of the lease term the Group has the option to purchase
the factory machinery and equipment at a price deemed to be
a bargain purchase option. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

The net book value of the factory machinery and equipment
held under finance leases of the Group at 31st March, 2006
was $6,466,000 (2005: $10,529,000).

(d)

UREHERA v EEEE
BRIMELARBERERE 2 HET I - AEEE
BRUERNEISZREHRE - A TR MR
- NEEHRERE  AREREEEAEEE
RBEZF THEELRE - RERETESE
FEHEL -

AEEARERERTE 2 THEERREN =2
TNFEZ A=+— B 2 REFE 56,466,0007T
(ZZZHF : 10,529,0007T) ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

15
(e)

()

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group and the Company leases out investment property
under an operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of
three years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. The lease does not
include contingent rentals.

The Group’s and the Company’s total future minimum lease
payments under the non-cancellable operating lease are
receivable as follows:

15 BEE&EE (&)

(e)

RELELHEHEE ZEEEE
AEENARRIA—EEEHSHHIREDE
ZIAME—RFRP=5F - WA BREEEEN
BHABEERED - ZAHELEBFNE
e o

AEBRARBRE A RR 2 QEEERERR
P2 SRR E N FRABFELAT

The Group and the Company

AEERANT
2006 2005
$'000 F 7t $'000 F7T
Within 1 year —FR 2,090 540
After 1 year but within — 1%
5 years BRFA 2,960 -
5,050 540

The fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment property at 31st March, 2006 is
$23,500,000 which is estimated on the basis of capitalisation
of the net rental income with due allowance for reversionary
income potential. The valuation was carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Sallmanns (Far East) Limited,
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06
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16

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Bt A Bl RE

The Company

RAF]
2006 2005

$'000 ¥t $'000 7t
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIRE « RKAE 93,072 93,072
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEUSB B A RIZRIE 718,749 823,022

811,821 916,094
Less: Impairment losses o REEE (668,396) (642,193)

143,425 273,901

At 31st March, 2006 and 2005, amounts due from subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The entire balance is expected to be recovered after
more than one year.

Impairment losses on interest in subsidiaries represent the write
down of the carrying values of the investments in certain
subsidiaries to the net asset values of these subsidiaries.

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note
1(c) and have been consolidated into the Group's
financial statements.

RIETERNFER_TTRF=_A=1+—H ' EK
MBARKBEERT 2EREETENRS -
TEHA 2 SR SRR BB — F R I -

B A A R ERSE IR E THB AR
RECEABEMAEHBAAZEE
FE -
TERRAAEENBAAZRIE - B2E
HES  AEREREZHBAARGYA
LB -

IS8 A R RTRE 1 (QFT S 2 AT B 2
Al WHEREEZ BBHRERAGEFH -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZS#ETE)

16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 FiEE L A
Particulars of
Place of issued and Proportion of
incorporation paid-up ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation capital held by the Company activities
PN S
EEEERLE
FEfR AR S R BRITR directly indirectly
NCIEZE 2 it B BRRAFE ;3 A FEEK
% %
Vitasoy Holdings Netherlands US$6,100 100 - Investment
N.V. Antilles 6,100%7T holding
fare 22 B0 51 B REZER
Vitasoy Netherlands EUR22,500 - 100 Investment
International TR EZE22,500 holding
B.V. REZER
Vitasoy (UK) United GBP2 100 - Investment
Investments Kingdom VES holding
Company Limited [ REZER
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States Common stock: - 100 Manufacture
of America US$12,061,000 and sale of
e LR soy related
12,061,0003= 7T products
HERHE
Convertible - 100 SHIEm
series A
preferred stock:
US$25,400,000
AIHAARASAE AR
25,400,000 7T
Shenzhen Vitasoy People’s Registered capital: 70 - Manufacture
(Guang Ming) Republic of RMB80,000,000 and sale of
Foods and Beverage China FEMEZ beverages
Company REAR AR #:80,000,0007T FER
Limited (note i) FEANE SHER SR

RN GERR)
RERHERAR] (D)
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation
Name of company and operation
EEa 1) AV
NCIEZE e 3:0E
Vitasoy (China) Hong Kong
Investments B
Company Limited
M (P B REFR AT
Vitasoy (Shanghai) People’s
Company Republic of
Limited (note ii) China
g (Es) HREAR
BRRA R (D FEANEY
Vita International Hong Kong
Holdings Limited B
MBI E AR AR
Vitasoy Australia Australia
Products Pty. BN
Ltd.
(note iii)
(B
Vitasoja (Macau) Macau
Limitada PG
g ORFI) AR AR
Produtos De Soja Macau
Hong Kong JEFT

(Macau) Limitada
Arsm(RM) AR AR

16

Particulars of
issued and
paid-up
capital

SRTR
BRBRAFE

$20
207T

Registered

capital:

RMB191,476,367
AR

AR¥191,476,3677C

$20
207T

V class shares:
A$8,925,000
VAR -
8,925,00038 7T
N class shares:
A$8,575,000
NAEAL -
8,575,000 7T

MOP100,000
JEF9#5100,0007T

MOP10,000
JEPF9%510,0007T

B R AR (AR)

Proportion of

ownership interest Principal
held by the Company activities
PN g S
HEEERL R
directly indirectly
Hiz = FEXK
% %
100 — Investment
holding
REZR

- 100 Manufacture
and sale of

beverages

FER

SHE

100 - Investment
holding
&AL

- 100 Manufacture
and sale of

beverages

FER

HE B

100 - Distribution
of beverages
pak AT

- 100 Dormant
T
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAZS#ETE)

16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 M2 ElfE (

Particulars of

B

Place of issued and Proportion of
incorporation paid-up ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation capital held by the Company activities

AR AT

BEREERL =R

SRR S K BRITR directly indirectly
REERE —ES BRRAFE Hi# iE:= FTEEK

% %
Vitaland Services Hong Kong $3,000,000 100 - Operation of
Limited BB 3,000,000 tuck shops
MM R RSB R A A KERYED
Hong Kong Gourmet Hong Kong $20 - 100 Provision of
Limited BB 207T catering
BEEREGRAT services
RULER AR
The Hong Kong Hong Kong $20 100 = Property
Soya Bean Products BB 207t investment
Company, Limited MR A

BESmAaRAR
Vitasoy Distributors Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. RN AN S T
2,500,0007T
Notes: FI%E
(i) Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage (i) A GLRR) RESEIARR A A (DRI

Company Limited (“Shenzhen Vitasoy"”) is a sino-foreign
equity joint venture established in the People’s Republic of

China and is to be operated for 20 years up to 2011.
(i) Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign (ii)
owned subsidiary established in the People’s Republic of

China and is to be operated for 50 years up to 2045.

(iii)  The Group has an interest in 51% of the equity of Vitasoy (iii)
Australia Products Pty. Ltd..
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(a)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined
contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in Hong Kong
and outside Hong Kong.

Defined contribution retirement plans

(i)  The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
plan, Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff
Provident Fund, which is available for all eligible staff
employed by the Group in Hong Kong and Macau before
1st August, 2000. The plan is funded by contributions
from employees and the Group, both of which contribute
sums representing 5 - 7.5% of basic salaries. Forfeited
contributions are credited to members’ accounts in
accordance with the rules of the plan. The plan is
administered by trustees with the assets held separately
from those of the Group. The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’s contributions after 10 complete
membership years, or at an increasing scale of
between 50% to 90% after completion of 5 to 9
membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required to
join the Group’s mandatory provident fund plan under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent corporate trustee. Under the plan, the Group
and the employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

(i)  Employees in the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") are members of the central pension
scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of employees’
remuneration to the central pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation for the Group with respect
to the central pension scheme is the associated required
contribution under the central pension scheme.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

17

B SR AGHE
REEEREREBUIMBERZ KRB MNZIAR
R FERARIGTE

RERFCRIREE

(i)

REBRMENR_ZTZFN\A—B2ZA
EEEMAFSERAKECAERET
R IR EHRFURIRE B (b B E
EBERARBEAER) - ZtBl2EE2K
BREMAKEZHK - EHHASER
JEH25—7.5% ° RWHFIGRIZFT B2 4R
AIBAGTBIK B ZIRP - %At BIRMAERE
AER  MIBEENEAREZEEDH
BRI - A2 TAtEIMI105E - BEAZEA
2HEEMHK - M2 T EESEIFA =
BRZREHFADLLAAE50% ZEFIEE
90% -

AR S B I 2 IR E TR IRET
Z 2 BHFREE - WERBESGRHIMEAT
SETERBD 2 MASEE 285 AT ST
2l - wEIMEAESFE A —HATHIR
WRETEl - BBEBEXEABE - BIRZ
TE AEERHEESRESBBAKA
(B A Z 8 R £ %20,0007T) 2 5%]A)
FTEIETR o [METEISZ S Z HRFRBIRF AR

AR EE AR ([RE) 2B RRZ
EEH2IME T EBTRLZF RERES
Bl - AKEARESME X AN
A RIR RS R EIER - AEE Rt RIR
REtEIPARTT 2 E—BEERRHRE
REFH B o MBI 2 R BN
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

17
(a)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

For employees in Australia, contributions are made by
the Group to a registered superannuation fund
for its employees, at 9% of the employees’ salaries.
The assets of the scheme are held separately by an
independent administered fund. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

Eligible employees in the United States of America are
covered by a defined contribution retirement plan under
section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan
provides for voluntary employee contributions, which
represent a salary deferral for U.S. income tax purposes,
of up to 100% of each employee’s annual salary, subject
to a cap of US$15,000 (2005: US$14,000). The Group
also contributes an annual amount in respect of each
employee’s self contribution. The amount of the Group’s
annual contribution is limited by the lesser of (i) 50% of
each employee’s annual contribution, and (i) 6% of each
employee’s gross annual salary. The employees are entitled
to 100% of the employer’s contributions after 4 complete
years' service, or at an increasing scale of between 25%
to 75% after completion of 1 to 3 years’ service.

Where there are employees who leave prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the forfeited employer’s
contributions shall be used to reduce the future
contributions of the employer. During the year, forfeited
contributions of $174,000 (2005: $62,000) was utilised.
At the balance sheet date, the total amount of forfeited
contributions which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years was $47,000
(2005: $154,000).
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14,0003%7T) & EIR - REBE IR ES
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ATFIMER ZRESERR : ((FEES
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(b)

(@]

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 17 EEEMNRGE (B
Defined benefit retirement plans (b) RERAEMETE
At 31st March, 2006, the Group and the Company recognised RZZZRF=A=+—H ' XEERAAFG
employee retirement benefit assets/(liabilities) in respect of the TIEREERAREIEREERKEBINEE,
following employee retirement benefits: (B
The Group The Company
S G|
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T
Employee retirement BRI
benefit assets BHEE
- retirement gratuities —RikE
(note (c)) (FifzE(c) 1,467 1,988 1,659 2,166
Employee retirement EERIK
benefit liabilities BAaE
—long service payments —RER%E
(note (d)) (B (2,951) (3,745) (2,834) (3,595)
(1,484) (1,757) (1,175) (1,429)
Retirement gratuities (c) EiKZ

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who have
completed a prescribed minimum period of services and joined
the Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement
gratuities upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the
last month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme, was established for
the retirement gratuities. The defined benefit retirement plan
is administered by an independent corporate trustee, with
assets held separately from those of the Group. The plan is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with
an independent actuary’s recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was at 31st March,
2006 and was prepared by qualified staff of Towers Perrin,
who are members of the Society of Actuaries of the United
States of America, using the projected unit credit method. The
valuation indicates that the Group’s obligation under this
defined benefit retirement plan is 148% (2005: 134%) covered
by the plan assets held by the trustee.

REEEREMRM 2 BREERBFEED—R
HIE 2 MR RN EE B B2 BTANAASEE -
BAEERRFREEIERS - SRR TRIEK
FiR AR R R FEME -

REE RIS KL —IRE B e B AR ARG E
— B EEAR AR FUERMETE - %A
FERMENRGTERBLARETEAEE  HE
EEAREEZ BEDFRRIE - At 8l mAKER
RRIBIIEERD 2 2 fEH R

T2 B BB GETIR S ENF=A=1
— HETowers Perrinz & E %5 8 (AEBISERD
Beye8) RABEENEERET - BRAMGE
BINASBEREZ AT RABNRTEIFTERITZ
BEHA148% (ZZTTHF : 134%) LIt AR
B2 EIBERRE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

17 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

0)

(ii)

17 EERKEE (B

(c) Retirement gratuities (continued) (c) EBHRE@E)
The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are iy REEBBERERZSH
as follows: AR
The Group The Company
REE PN
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F7C $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Present value of 2HER
wholly funded BEZ
obligations RE (52,659) (53,917) (50,977) (52,463)
Fair value of plan FrEIEEZ
assets ARfE 78,181 72,192 76,400 70,740
Net unrecognised NERBZIEE
actuarial gains W 558 (24,055) (16,287) (23,764) (16,111)
Employee retirement B BIRIK
benefit assets BAEE 1,467 1,988 1,659 2,166
A portion of the above asset is expected to be recovered TEH bl & E D AR B R —F g U mE
after more than one year. However, it is not practicable ST - RS RIRER IS & B8R4t 2 iR
to segregate this amount from the amounts receivable in BRABERERRRTR LATREHIEAZ
the next twelve months, as future contributions will also B - UG IR B AR T 8 A A PTRE
relate to future services rendered and future changes in WWER 2 & REFR BRI T AT (T o
actuarial assumptions and market conditions.
Movements in the net assets recognised in the balance iy PEEAEBBRLBRAZFEAEZD
sheets are as follows: LU
The Group The Company
REE 2 /NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F T $'000F7T $'000F 7T $'000F7T
At 1st April RIMA—H 1,988 510 2,166 668
Contributions mEt B
paid to the plan EA1EF 604 2,486 475 2,380
Net expense bt
recognised in R
profit or loss F
(note 5(b)) (B =ES(b)) (1,125) (1,008) (982) (882)
At 31st March R=A=+—8H 1,467 1,988 1,659 2,166
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17 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 17 {EERKETE (B

() Retirement gratuities (continued) (c) EHRE@E
(i) Net expense recognised in profit or loss is as follows: (i) AERERFZHENAT
2006 2005
$'000 7T $'000 FiT
Current service cost B BRFE AL A (3.647) (3,843)
Interest cost BB (2,244) (1,869)
Actuarial expected return STEIBEECIBE
on plan assets iEE eI 3,748 3,358
Net actuarial gains ERREE
recognised Gy 1,018 1,346
(1,125) (1,008)
The net expense is recognised in the following line items FFRXHIAGEERRRT ZIER
in the consolidated income statement: T
2006 2005
$'000 Ft $'000 F7T
Cost of sales B E KA (241) (225)
Marketing, selling and HE - HER
distribution expenses DIHEA (314) (282)
Administrative expenses THER (413) (354)
Other operating Hfhge
expenses B (157) (147)
(1,125) (1,008)

The actual return on plan assets (taking into account all

changes in the fair value of the plan assets excluding

contributions paid and received) was net income of
$9,030,000 (2005: net loss of $1,599,000).

STEEEZER DR G RTEIEEAAR
ZETBES  ERABREEMNRERER) A
JFULA9,030,000T (ZEZTRHF : JFEI8

1,599,0007T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

17 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 17
(c) Retirement gratuities (continued) (c)
(iv)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st March,
2006 are as follows:

BERKEE (B)

RINE (B

(ivy R-ZETRF=A=1t—HBRRAZEE
BERBRROT :

The Group and the Company

AEERAQNT
2006 2005
Discount rate BRIR 4.50% 4.25%
Expected rate of return STEIEEZ
on plan assets SEERCIETES 5.50% 5.25%
Future salary increases RIRF ML 18 3.25% 3.00%
(d) Long service payments d)y EHR%<

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the Group.
The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also carried
out at 31st March, 2006, by qualified staff of Towers Perrin,
who are members of the Society of Actuaries of the United
States of America, using the projected unit credit method.

(i) The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are

as follows:

RIEFBEREGL) - AREAEE THER T
IHERRAEERBEDAF 2R ERRKE
N—FBFE - MIAXNZ 2B R FRE KL
R MIREFEME - LAERER] >W$E%F$%I
RGT B RAT BN AR EPTEH U -
%ISE?E%EE?’é%%ktféﬁfﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ@cﬁﬁﬁ%
ZEE o

EHREE TR T F=ZA= ‘f‘ H EEI
Towers PerrinZ & 8B B (AEBI5ER
28) KAEEEMEERETT %:ﬁﬁﬁ

() MNEEEBERBERZEFEWT :

The Group The Company
BT ] ARH
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F T $'000F7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T

Present value of fE&B)

unfunded BEZ

obligations HE (602) (1,225) (437) (1,031)
Net unrecognised REERIEH

actuarial gains e F 58 (2,349) (2,520) (2,397) (2,564)
Employee retirement B BIRIK

benefit liabilities VA=K (2,951) (3,745) (2,834) (3,595)
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17 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(d) Long service payments (continued)

(i)  Movements in the net liabilities recognised in the balance

17 EERKEE (E)
(d) RERZBE(E
iy REEBBEXRER

FRERD

sheets are as follows: I
The Group The Company
REE ZRAF]
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7 $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
At 1st April RmA—H (3,745) (4,113) (3,595) (3,977)
Net income JiaEi=End
recognised in R
profit or loss FUA
(note 5(b)) GER() 406 207 261
Benefits paid B 1EF 388 161 121
At 31st March R=A=+—H (2,951) (3,745) (2,834) (3,595)
(i) Net income recognised in profit or loss is as follows: (i) AIBRERZFWALT :
2006 2005
$'000 Tt $'000 7T
Current service cost ARG A (31 (25)
Interest cost A 2R A (50) (73)
Net actuarial gains BERREE
recognised e #5E 487 305
406 207
The net income is recognised in the following line items FRFRRASIAGEERRRT ZIER
in the consolidated income statement: I
2006 2005
$'000 F7T $'000 FiT
Cost of sales SHER AR 108 57
Marketing, selling and HE - HER
distribution expenses DIHE R 76 13
Administrative expenses TBER 152 94
Other operating expenses Hihgcs B A 70 43
406 207
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

17 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 17 ERBHREE G
(d) Long service payments (continued) (d) RHR#EE (&)
(iv)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st March, vy RZZETRF=A=+—HRKAZEE
2006 are as follows: BERRAT

The Group and the Company

REBRAKRAT
2006 2005
Discount rate ALER & 4.50% 4.25%
Future salary increases RIRF ML 18 3.25% 3.00%
18 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 18 BESBRZFBH
(a) Current tax payable in the balance sheets represents: (a) EEEERZEMHEBHENRRE:
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F ¢ $'000F 7T
Provision for Hong Kong AEEER
Profits Tax for the year FleH &S 36,992 38,544 33,620 36,571
Provisional Profits Tax paid BANZBEFEH (29,248) (28,144) (27,456) (26,083)
7,744 10,400 6,164 10,488
Taxation outside Hong Kong BBNINHRFIE 2,817 801 - -
10,561 11,201 6,164 10,438
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18
(b)

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

18

EERBERZAEH (B
ERREEHREEREME

REEBBERERIEEHREE (BE) &

in the balance sheets and the movements during the year are FRZESHWT
as follows:
The Group AEE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess Future Employee
of related benefit of retirement
depreciation tax losses benefits Provisions Total
BLARTEZ RBEEz &8
HESHE RRAE BIRER B @zt
§000F 7T $000F 7 $000F 7T $000F 7T $000F 7T
Deferred tax arising REZEZ
from: BRIEBIE
At 1st April, 2004 RZZZMFNA—A (27,794) 10,319 5,386 9,504 (2,585)
(Charged)/credited Nt
to profit or loss (H8) /2tA (6,326) 9,054 (1,885) (1,642) (799)
At 31st March, 2005 RZEFREF=A=1-H (34,120) 19,373 3,501 7,862 (3,384)
At 1st April, 2005 RZZZhFMA—H (34,120) 19,373 3,501 7,862 (3,384)
Credited/(charged) RER
to profit or loss A/ (k) 2435 (2,037) (1,621) 2,008 785
At 31st March, 2006 RZZZ E=A=1-H (31,685) 17,336 1,880 9,870 (2,599)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

18
(b)

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued) 18 BEBBRZAEH (B
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERELEHESERERE:
(continued) (€)
The Company RN
Depreciation
allowances
in excess Employee
of related retirement
depreciation benefits Provisions Total
BUERAE EE
RERHE BAER B &
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Deferred tax arising REREZ
from: EREHIE -
At 1st April, 2004 RZZETNFNA—H (11,184) 5,250 1,984 (3,950)
Credited/(charged) i
to profit or loss A/ (F1%) 1,044 (1,886) 335 (507)
At 31st March, 2005 RZEZTRF=A=1—H (10,140) 3,364 2,319 (4,457)
At 1st April, 2005 RZETRFNA—H (10,140) 3,364 2,319 (4,457)
Credited/(charged) iy =
to profit or loss A/ GNRR) 985 (1,601) 23 (593)
At 31st March, 2006 RZFE E=A=1+—H (9,155) 1,763 2,342 (5,050)
Summary ME
The Group The Company
AEE NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F 1T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Net deferred tax assets REEBER
recognised on the RLIEE
balance sheet REBEFE 2,952 1,224 - -
Net deferred tax liabilities REEBER
recognised on the RLIEE
balance sheet HIRAETFE (5,551) (4,608) (5,050) (4,457)
(2,599) (3,384) (5,050) (4,457)
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of $153,127,000 (2005:
$156,443,000) in respect of tax losses of $478,786,000 (2005:
$489,327,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdictions and entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
$81,296,000 (2005: $92,119,000) which can be carried
forward up to five years from the year in which the loss
originated. The remaining balance of $397,490,000 (2005:
$397,208,000) does not expire under current tax legislation.

EEEBRZAEH (B
RERZIELERIBEE

IRIRFTEE 1 (S)FTE 2 G EHBUR + ARG BN R
B 75 E518478,786,000 T (ZETFHEF ¢
489,327,0007T) Z IRIERLHE E153,127,0007T
(ZTZTAF : 156,443,0007T) * REFEA BEFIE
RAEB R R B AEK AT BE 2 AE 8 SR A LAE
SHAREE -

BIRRITHIO - REEREEIEHE81,296,000
JL(ZZZTHEF : 92,119,0007T) #57] HEE B iR
FFfEm - H#r397,490,000c (ZETHEF ¢
397,208,0007T) B 1E T & 16 B i o

19 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 ROTFRERERAEEEER
The Group The Company
NS AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Cash at bank and in hand ﬁEﬁZ‘*T&Eﬁfﬁﬁ 122,862 76,919 15,962 23,107
Bank deposits maturing FRdsd
within 3 months when :flﬂZ
placed RITEN 279,678 325,754 253,485 291,135
Cash and cash equivalents FEREMEK
in the consolidated RS R
cash flow statement ReZEER 402,540 402,673 269,447 314,242
Bank deposits maturing after FREN TR
3 months but within ZEAE—F
1 year when placed ZHRITER 78,497 91,606 50,055 70,593
Bank deposits maturing after FREEZR—F2
1 year when placed AT 22,768 38,427 22,768 38,427
503,805 532,706 342,270 423,262
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

19 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 ROGERHEBESRESEEEH
(continued) (&)
Included in bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are RITFREARS RS EERE B NIIAEE
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than B2 EEINEBIEHEE
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
The Group The Company
T5E NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
000F 000F 000F 0007
Hong Kong dollars BT HKD #742,364  HKD 711,023 - -
United States dollars e USD 73,768 USD 77306 USD £73,768 USD %7t7,306
Australian dollars BT AUD 273,401 AUD 72,784 AUD ®72,855 AUD 272,382
20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET 20 HithemEE
The Group and the Company
AEBERART
2006 2005
$'000 F 7T $'000 FiT
Financial asset at fair value EanEstE AEZEHRN
through profit or loss BaRERZEREE 13,922 =

This represents a long-term structured deposit contract with a
bank. The contract will mature in 2008 and the principal
amount is US$2,000,000. Interest is receivable semi-annually
in the first year at 8% per annum and in subsequent years at
rates based on the difference between 8% and two times
of LIBOR.

The contract will automatically be terminated early once the
sum of interest amounts receivable on all interest payment dates
up to and including the early maturity date equals to or exceeds
US$200,000, and the bank will repay the full principal amount
plus accrued interest.

After the adoption of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” on 1st April, 2005, the
structured deposit is classified as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss and carried at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Comparative amount has not been restated as this is prohibited
by the transitional arrangements in HKAS 39. Further details
of the transitional arrangements are set out in note 2(f).
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20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET (continued)
This structured deposit was classified as bank deposits at 31st
March, 2005.

The financial asset is denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which it relates:

20 HitreMEE (@)
AR — ST REZ A= +— B3
YERRATIE R -

HEMBEFHEER R BEHER SR
LGN Gt

The Group and the Company

AEERADH
2006 2005
‘000 F ‘000 T
United States dollars e USD £ 1,792 -
21 INVENTORIES 21 F&
(a) Inventories in the balance sheets comprise: (a) BEEBRTHNEFEEENE:
The Group The Company
A5 NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F ¢ $'000F 7T
Raw materials JRR 111,128 111,062 58,102 54,972
Finished goods S 96,983 74,278 32,316 28,454
208,111 185,340 90,418 83,426
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) EERAMIZEESXRE
an expense is as follows: DMAT :
The Group
REH
2006 2005
$'000 F 7T $'000 F7T
Carrying amounts of BEEFEZ
inventories sold ARmEE 1,122,840 1,092,643
Write down of inventories HWomFE 5,574 3,969
1,128,414 1,096,612
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 FEUWERFRR H 4t FEURFR
The Group The Company
NS ARH
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Trade debtors and bills FEBRTR R
receivable EWEE 315,013 275,961 223,152 192,727
Deposits, prepayments R - BEIFEK
and other debtors H YR 37,118 28,491 6,410 6,650
352,131 304,452 229,562 199,377
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be NS BT HR PR /G FE IR R B E M FE HSGR AT — 58
recovered within one year, except rental and utility deposits AUk E - HEREET,201,000T (2T HEF ¢
amounting to $7,201,000 (2005: $7,451,000) for the Group 7,451,0007T) KA A E]464,0007T (ZETREF :
and $464,000 (2005: $285,000) for the Company which are 285,0007T) 2 HE KK EZEAFEHR —Fi%
expected to be recovered after more than one year. eI

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and REER - ERBERR R ALY - IR
bills receivable (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful AR FEWCEE (BB RERR 2R EEE) 2 BRER
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the balance DT
sheet date:
The Group The Company
AEE AAF
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T
By date of invoice NEZAHHE
0 - 3 months ZE=lA 267,932 240,157 177,276 157,754
4 - 6 months mEAEA 45,802 35,685 44,795 34,973
Over 6 months ~NERLAE 1,279 119 1,081 -
315,013 275,961 223,152 192,727
The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 29(a). AEE 2 EEBERSIHE29() °
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23  AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The entire balance
is expected to be recovered within one year.

Included in amounts due from subsidiaries are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

23

i Ldin)- PNGIE S
FEUPB AR R EER R S - BEEE
B - 2EBEHBATER —FREE -

JEUSH B A R BRI TIAR BB 2 IREE
BLNEBIFHERS

Ay

The Company

RAF]
2006 2005
'000 F ‘000 F
Euros B aE EUREZE7,211 EURERZE7,112
United States dollars ET USD%7t34,812 USDZ7T16,084
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 PSRRI EAENRK
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F 1T $000F 7T $'000F T
Trade creditors and bills FEFTRES
payable eSS 165,899 153,547 105,758 87,281
Accrued expenses and B ERK
other payables Hi AR 180,087 150,131 63,069 59,217
345,986 303,678 168,827 146,498

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year, except customer deposits amounting to
$14,421,000 (2005: $14,047,000) for the Group and
$14,319,000 (2005: $13,912,000) for the Company which are
expected to be settled after more than one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and
bills payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance
sheet date:

R EETE AR R BR A R B A FE T R — 4
RIERRE - EARE[14,421,0007T (CEZTRE ¢
14,047,0007T) &AN7A 14,319,000t (ZZZTH
1 13,912,0007T) 2 & P iz& RITA BN —F1&

B

o

i
p

REEH - ERMNRRREMENTT - B
AR ENRRZ REDMAOT

The Group The Company
&R NG|

2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T

By date of invoice NEZAMSHE
0 - 3 months TE=fEA 162,219 149,774 102,903 84,375
4 - 6 months mEEA 2,178 1,548 1,363 1,11
Over 6 months NMERAE 1,502 2,225 1,492 1,795
165,899 153,547 105,758 87,281
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

At 31st March, 2006, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24 ENRRREMENSRKE)
Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts AR R AN R EIE T AT B 2T
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency BB LIINEBEHEES
of the entity to which they relate:
The Group The Company
A5E AAF
2006 2005 2006 2005
'000F '000F '000F '000F
United States dollars e USDE 7683 USDZ7c574 USDZ7683 USDZETT572
Japanese yen HE JPYRE22,718 - JPYHE22,718 -
BANK LOANS 25 SRITER

RIZBTRF=A=+—8 ' RITERBER T
HIRER

The Group
rEE

2006 2005

$'000F T $'000F 7T

Within 1 year —FR 41,279 154,250

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFERN - 4,490

After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFERN 78,050 10,105

78,050 14,595

119,329 168,845
At 31st March, 2006, bank loans totalling $14,517,000 (2005: KRBT NEFE=A=+—H ' #£%514,517,000
$19,085,000) were secured by charges over property, plant TL(ZZZARF : 19,085,0007T) ZRITEFTY
and equipment with net book values totalling $33,804,000 LABREEE 233,804,000 (ZEZTHF :

(2005: $37,069,000).

One of the Group's banking facilities is subject to the fulfilment
of a covenant relating to a balance sheet ratio of the Group,
as is commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenant the
drawn down facility would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with the covenant.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 29(b). As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had
complied with the covenant.
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26 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
At 31st March, 2006, the Group had obligations under finance

leases repayable as follows:

26 WEHREZER
REZZREF=ZA=1—0 AEEREHER
BRBEZERNT

2006 2005
Present Interest Present Interest
value of the expense Total value of the expense Total
minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future lease lease to future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
BERE ARRRAE RERE RERE BEARSHA RERE
HRZRE ZRERX et NHZBE ZHERR s
$000F 7 $000F 7 $000F 7 $000F 7 $000F 7 $000F 7
Within 1 year —5R 2,945 253 3,198 3,235 423 3,658
After 1 year but within —5k
2 years BRER 2,763 7 2,840 2,945 253 3,198
After 2 years but within ~ F&#%
5 years BRER - - - 2,763 71 2,840
2,763 7 2,840 5,708 330 6,038
5,708 330 6,038 8,943 753 9,696
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

27 CAPITALAND RESERVES 27 RAERFE

(@) The Group (a) AKE
Atrbutable to equity shereholders of the Company
KAARESEARE
Shere-
Captl based
Share  Share redemption  Capital legll  General  Exhange compensation  Retaned Ninorty Toal
aptal pemumreene  reene resene  reene  reene resene piofis Tl inferess  equiy
U o] 3R

B ORMEE  MERR  ReER MERR  RER  ERER RMRR  REM &t B R
0 1 1 N N BN (N (i i i i

At st Apr, 2004

]

-3 reiousy repored -RikzR o457 95,001 2061 642268 WU 128130
-plorperodadsmentineset  ~5EARARERL

ofequiy eted shreised UrkGr

farsactons e - (1231) -
- a5 et -5l 15451 96,001 261 641,036 Ui 128130
Bchanedfemesonfarsein ZelELA

ofthe fancaltatemens iR

offoreignsubsides JEREE - - 10 14
Tnserfom etaed poffs o ERARERE

g resne g1 - ) -
Tt fom et eseneto HRAREERE

rfaned piofs il (4067) - 408 -
Seesselmeecseoisoe  HIFERER

apions i 205 - - 10042
Eoutystted shreed tansaciors— HRABER %205

(st &l - = 1765
Fird didendappovednrepect— HERH-ER2RERS

ofte s e (note12(b)) (itta) - (56,3%) (56,3%)
Secil dhidendapproned nrespect SEBR E-EF 2 RERE

ofthe prviots ear e 12 ()) (itta) - (19:469) (19.469)
itern dvdend deceedmespect - ENRER 28RS

ofthe urentear e 123) (ko) - (775) - o)
Diidend pad tominorty shareoller Y BRREARE - - (A1)
Poftforthe ettt TERRE) - 0% 1% 1B
At 31st March, 2005 s rstaed) AFEREA=T-HE) 184 91914 261 632,175 7669 1295381
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27 CAPITALAND RESERVES (continued)

(a)

The Group (continued)

27 BAERREE(E)
(@) ZAEBE &)

Atrbutable to equity shereholders ofthe Compny
ALARRSAARE

(apitel

Shre-
based

Share  Share redemption  Capltdl legsl  General  Exhange compensation  Retaned Minority Totel
aptal pemum resene  reene resene  reene  reene  reene puofs Tt inferests  equly
i hfEd JEER
Bt REEE  RERR  BABR  iERR  -MRE  ENBR  RERR KM &t L i
0 A NN 1) N N AN (5 AN {1115,y N1 1 1
At1stAprl, 005 AESRELA-A
-3 el reported g W8 W19 1101 91,914 6,526 200 600 - Mmoo 1m 4669 1295381
o period astment 7 espec -RENRAAERZR
ofequiy eted shreised UM
fansactons (ot 2) (i) - - - -3 By
s et before g bilace ~Ef| (Rt
astment B 148 W19 1101 91,914 6,526 200 600 397 eIn 1 4669 1295381
- e asment nvepet ~EBERIEZEER
of fnancil istuments ote 2) EL Rl - - - (7% (1789) (1729)
et ater openingbelce -Ef|(E A
astment Eay W8 W19 1101 91,914 6,526 200 600 397 63046 12593 669 1293632
Eichangedfiences on nion BEiRIT
ofthe fancal tatemens kiR
offoreignsbsidaes EizE - - - 2136 - 265 (13 1
Tanger fom eaned poffsto ERakTERE
g resene i - - W - ()
Trns fiom catl esene o ERIRRERE
rfaned piofs & - - (s - - - -
Sharesised oneercie o s HiERER
options il 130 10484 - - - 184 - 184
T fom saedased ompenseon. /7
s o e lemium on e RERARRR
of sare s ERzhiikg m - - - m -
Futysetedshareised tansacons HRRBERZH IR - - - - - 164
Freldidend aproved i espec YERR -ERAHRE
ofthe prevous ear (rote 2] (it 1) - - - - S A AL [57.139)
Spedal hidend appoed st EER-ER24HRE
ofthe prevous ear (rote 2] (it 1) - - - - - (10024)  (100244) (100,244)
It didend decred i respect EERhERS
ofthe urentear e 126 (et 1) - - - - S v - ()
Diidend paid o minoty sl myHRRERRE - - - - ]
Proftforthe s TR = = = - - 10 17006 %9 1805
At 315t March, 2006 R E-R1-8 58 1845 1101 §1818 6830 200 (36%) 5909 60810 1250368 5560 130894

EMPDEBEEERAF
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 27 BARfR#E @)
(b) The Company (b) ZAAF
Capital Share-based
Share Share ~ redemption Capital General compensation  Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
03 RER
R&  BfhEE  BEEE 0 E4RE 0 -REE  RERE  REEN  RmEE
§000F7 §000F7 §00F 7T §000F7 §000F7 §00FT §000F7 §000F7
At 1st Aprl, 2004 AZELERA-A
- s previously reported 2R 6457 119242 1101 9,001 261 - 67909 1252971
- prior perod adjustment i respect ~ERNRAAERZ
of equitysetted share-based PG
transactons AR - - - - - 123 (1.230) -
- as estated -&j| 26,457 21942 1,101 9,001 2,261 123 626,677 1252971
Transfer from capitalresenve o BERGRERE
retaned profs RERH - - - (4087) - - 4,087 -
Shares issued on exercie of share STRERER
options Hikia 2005 8017 - - - - - 10,042
Equity setfled share-based ransactions WRAEERZ% 225
(restated) () - - - - - 2,765 - 2765
Final dvidend approved i respect HEBR -FE RERS
of the previous year (note 12(p) (3Enw) - - - - - - (56,395) (56,395)
Special didend approved n respect HEBR -FE/RRE
of the previous year (note 12(p) (F3Enm) - - - - - - (49.469) (49.469)
Interim dividend declred in respect SRREERERS
o the curtent year (note 12(a) (k1200 - - - - - - (275) (217s)
Proftfor the year (estaed) (note 11) RERAH E7) (hn) - - - - - - 103,731 103,731
At 315t March, 2005 (as restated) N-EERE=A=1-R (&) 28.48) 281,259 1,101 91914 2,261 3997 600,906 1235920
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27 CAPITALAND RESERVES (continued) 27 BRARRH#E @)

(b) The Company (continued) (b)y AATEE)
Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Capital General compensation  Retained Total
capital — premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
& RHER

B5 BBER  MERR  ARER BRE REER  RER  mukE
55 1 (i 15 A 1 B (i A 551

At 1st Aprl, 2005 HZERERA-A
- s previously reported ~if2g 24848 281259 1101 91914 261 - 604903 1,235,920
- prir perod adjustment n respect -RERRAERZ X2
of equity etfled share-based RELAIEGER
transactons (note 2(a) (ligalc) - - - 3997 (3997) -
- as estated, before opening balance ~&J (R
adjustment Enag) 28.48) 281259 91914 3997 600906 1,235,920
~opening blance adjustment n respect -RERRTA SR
of financial mstruments (note 2) E R - - - - (1,749) (1,769)
- as estated, fter opening belance ~EJ (B
adjustment Enag) 28.48) 281259 91914 3997 599,157 13417
Transer fom capital esenve to BEfGRERZ
retained profis REEH - - (4,086) - 4,086 -
Shares ssued on exercie ofshare HTRERER
options ki 230 10484 - - - 1284
Transer ffom share-based compensation iERERE
Teserve o share premium on exercise ROERRERR
of share options HEEROAR - mn - (1) - -
Equity setled share-based transactions WRABERZXf 225 - - - 2634 - 263
Final dhidend approved in respect HEBR -FE /R ERE
of the previous year (note 12(o) (#3120 - - - - (57,139) (57,139)
Special didend approved n respect HEBR -FE/RRE
of the previous year (note 12(o) (#3120 - - - - (100244 (100244)
Interm lvidend declared i respect SRAEE RS
of the curtent year (note 12(8) (B3 120a) - - - - (28091) (28091)
Proftfor the year (note 11) RER A (M) - - - - 140,737 140,737
At 315t March, 2006 R-E5rE=f=1-A 250822 298,455 1 87818 5919 558,506 1,204,892
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Share capital

(i)

(if)

27 BRAERfREE)

(c) B
Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEERBBEITERA
2006 2005
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
HRE kx| R £
'000F $'000F T '000F $'000F 7T
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of BAREE0.257T2
$0.25 each Gl 3,200,000 800,000 3,200,000 800,000
Ordinary shares, issued ERTREAR
and fully paid: EER
At 1st April REUA—H 993,928 248,482 985,828 246,457
Shares issued on exercise BIERIETTE
of share options mEfT2R%D 9,360 2,340 8,100 2,025
At 31st March R=A=+—H 1,003,288 250,822 993,928 248,482
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive Tz A AR RS IR RS -

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued under share option schemes

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
9,360,000 (2005: 8,100,000) ordinary shares in the
Company. The net consideration was $12,824,000 (2005:
$10,042,000) of which $2,340,000 (2005: $2,025,000)
was credited to share capital and the balance of
$10,484,000 (2005: $8,017,000) was credited to the
share premium account. An amount of $712,000 (2005:
Nil) has been transferred from the share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(p)(iv).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2005/06
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WAIRARR 2 K& Lt SRR =F ﬁ—
SIREE - RARAZRBEEMS -
BEBRFARESERM -

RIS R RELT B3 T 2 R 1D
FAARBEARR AL EAR9,360,0000 (ZF
TR : 8,100,000/%) 2 FEARFERETTE © FFT
SRIBF5 512,824,000 (ZTZHF :
10,042,0007T) * HH12,340,0007T (ZFF
FF :2,025,0007T) BREARA - Hek
10,484,0007T (ZZZH 4 : 8,017,0007T)
Rl ABZ(D R (BER © 712,000T (Z2Z A
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27
(d)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections
48B and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February,
1994, the Company disposed of a property to a former
subsidiary and consideration was received in the form of
cash and another property. A total gain, representing the
difference between the historical carrying value of the
property disposed of and the fair value of the
consideration received, resulted.

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into
realised and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount
of cash and the fair value of the property received (“the
property”). The unrealised gain was taken to capital
reserve and is realised on depreciation of the property.
During the year, $4,086,000 (2005: $4,087,000) is
transferred from capital reserve to retained profits.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy
and Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada in accordance with
regulations in the People’s Republic of China and Macau
respectively.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(r).

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 1(p)(iv).

27

IR (B

EEZHER AR

()  RIDRERREREDHE
Mt m B R ERNEREEZ AED R
B A FHEH) 55 48B RAOHIKESE ©

(i) EARRE
EAAEEMR—NANANE= ATz EH
Z—EMn - AARR—MRAIHB AR LE
—EYE RENRESRZ —BEYEX
o ST EMERE LREEED
WREAREZZRE -

ZIER 52 Westz B WER € Rz ([])
RAEZLHD BB R RRERBH -
ABE W BT ABAREE  WREtED
FIMEREI o NAFENA - 4,086,0007T
(ZZZ R : 4,087,00070) B B A
BAREBREF

(i) SEERE
SEIE bR AR M (o ) B A g ORPT) AR
RADBIREREARAAE FORFZ A

PIRRAZ

(iv) ERRE
EXFBEESREIMEBMBIHRRES
ZBERZRE - ZREERREM IO
B SRTBRMER -

(v) BOERHERKE
ROEEHERELERTAEEREEZ
B SfEFT M RITEBERENARE A
A A A TOARIR BT 1 (p)iv) T BELARR (D &
B ) FRER AN 2 & 5B M HERR o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

27
(e)

CAPITALAND RESERVES (continued)

Distributability of reserves

At 31st March, 2006, the amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company are

as follows:

27 BARFHE (B

(e)

AR AE (S
RZZBERF=A=1+—R8 ' DK TARA
PR B A Z BRI

The Company

PN
2006 2005
(restated) (&%)
$'000 Tt $'000 Tt
General reserve — MR 2,261 2,261
Retained profits IREE & 558,506 600,906
560,767 603,167

After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend and a special dividend of 6.7 cents per ordinary share
(2005: 5.7 cents per ordinary share) and 10.0 cents per ordinary
share (2005: 10.0 cents per ordinary share) respectively,
amounting to $167,922,000 (2005: $157,383,000). These
dividends have not been recognised as liabilities at the balance
sheet date.
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6.7 (ZZZREF : FREMARS. 7ML) RAFRIRR
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 9th March,
1994 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors
of the Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including Directors of any company
in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares
of $0.25 each in the Company. The exercise price of options
was determined by the Directors of the Company and was the
higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares and (ii) an amount
not less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

On 4th September, 2002, the Company terminated the Old
Share Option Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) for a period of 10 years
commencing from that date. Under the terms of this scheme,
the exercise price of the options is determined by the Directors
of the Company and is the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.

No further options were granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme upon its termination and all outstanding options
granted thereunder continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Old Share Option Scheme
until the expiry of the exercise period.

Under the Old Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option
Scheme, there is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised, but the Directors of the
Company are empowered to impose at their discretion any
such minimum period at the date of offer. The options are
exercisable for a period not to exceed 10 years from the date
of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one share in the Company.

28

URBRERZZINZRE
RABR—NANEE= AN BIRA— BT
B ([ERETED - Hut - AARIZERER
ERESFAEEZ ES (BEREEE MEAD
Rl2EE) BNERE L RB AR R SR E(E0.25
ToZ EIRAR o AR Z T BHARRIZ EHE
ERBR/ATRER 2BREE : VRHZEER
()RR BAIRREEAAE B HAAT AL %
BIEEBHARSAARAR ([#RA) 2 FH5
Wi {E280% °

R_ZE_FNAMB - AAFR I EERER
B - R —IRHTE AR B ([T BB B Rt
g - BRHATF - BIRAE B - RIBEZ
FEZ G BREZTRERARRESRE
E R TNI=FRzREERE  (MWrHNEEE
H(ARERR) BT Wi (B : (DARDTIE
ERHBHESEREERAERIMERSTZF
HUTHE ¢ Rk 2 EfE

AR BB SR T B RIBZRT S
KT EFBRRE - MATAREZTEMREZR
TR DR AR - W ATRTTEEMAITR
RERBRES 8 Z RRITE

RIBFERBREST & FATBRERT 8 - BRESA
FTATHRA —BBEEPE AT - ARz E
FERENELD R ARSI INERRERA
R - Bl 2 TE NS EBRH B A 2+
F o FEBEEZSA AL ERERE —RA AT

g
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28 RO AERZZTZRE
(continued) (&)

(@) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and (a) REE B ZRERRARITERERE 2R R
unexercised share options at balance sheet date are as T FEERESURD ZENRNEE

follows, whereby all options are settled by physical

delivery of shares:

2006 2005

Contractual Remaining Number Remaining Number
life of Exercise  contractual of contractual of
Date of grant Exercise period options price life option life options
BhREZ o] e ok FikiE
RHAH fried RHER friE BHER i ] AHEH Z8A
$T 000F 000
4/7/2000 7/9/2000 to%31/8/2005 5 years 1193 - - 1years 6,962
1/4/2003 1/412004 t0Z31/3/2013 (noteffi3E) 10 years 1.688 7 yearsE 7,105 8 yearsE 11,762
1/4/2004 1/4/2005 t0Z31/3/2014 (noteliiz) 10 years® 1.904 8 yearsE 6,154 9 years® 8,082
3/8/2004 3/8/2006 t0Z2/8/2014 10 yearsE 1.910 8 yearsE 900 9 yearss 900
1/6/2005 1/6/2006 toZ31/5/2015 (notefi3t) 10 years 2.375 9 yearsE 1,184 - -
22,543 27,706

Note:  The options are exercisable progressively and the maximum M : AT FATEEZ BAEELE ToE 2450 - sk

percentage of the options which may be exercised is RAfTEEREZ B DL ERAAT

determined in stages as follows:

Percentage of
options granted

HERBREZAESL

On or after 1st year anniversary of B B R — B 25%
the date of grant S H &

On or after 2nd year anniversary of B AT A F another®25%
the date of grant S H &

On or after 3rd year anniversary of FH B ARG =AF another®25%
the date of grant S E1E

On or after 4th year anniversary of X B EB AT A S another25%
the date of grant S H &
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28 LBRHBAERZZTZRE
(continued) (&)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) HBBREZHE RINEFH
share options are as follows: TEEMT :
2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
MEFGITEE BREZE®E METHIEE BilREsHE
$TT '000F $7T '000F
Outstanding at st April WA — B AT 1.634 27,706 1.436 28,372
Exercised during the year RER{TE 1.371 (9,360) 1.241 (8,100)
Granted during the year RERKH 2.375 8,160 1.905 9,456
Lapsed on expiry of R1TfEHER
exercise period during MAEER
the year R 1.193 (744) - -
Forfeited on termination Ra&kamE
of employment of BERL T
eligible participants RER
during the year SRR 1.863 (3,219) 1.705 (2,022)
Outstanding at 31st March RZA=+—BHATE 1.993 22,543 1634 27,706
Exercisable at 31st March R=R=+—Ba{Ift 4,588 9,662

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was $2.405
(2005: $2.061).

BT 2 BN F AT B Hi 2 hndE 3 A%
85240570 (ZZZHF : 2.06170) °

HMPBEREBERLE —T20H /ZERFER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(o]

(continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services
received is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial
lattice model.

Fair values of share options and the related assumptions are

as follows:
Fair value at measurement date RetERHBZARE
Share price R
Exercise price 116e(E
Expected volatility HERIE
Expected option life TR ARE 2 A
Expected dividends RS

Risk-free interest rate BB E

28

1/4/2003

$0.356
$1.640
$1.688
35%

10 yearsF
7.50%
3.91%

LR BER XN 25

(435
=)

BREZ A AEBERRERR

AEBE AR K BRERES Z RSN ARE T
2ECRHBEREZ AAERE - IREURBE
2 AR EATIAA RN - BhkiEs
SREHREZER 2 —RBAZE - FRRET
IfEZEHE R AT IRAREEN 2 A -

BREZ AR ERABRRAT

Date of grant

RIEAH
1/4/2004 3/8/2004 1/6/2005
$0.405 $0.442 $0.522
$1.880 $1.910 $2.375
$1.904 $1.910 $2.375
35% 35% 35%
10 yearsF 10 yearsF 10 yearsF
7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
3.34% 4.18% 3.52%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” does not apply to the share
options granted on 4th July, 2000 as those shares were granted
before 7th November, 2002.
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28

(d)

29

(a)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Share options granted subsequent to the balance

sheet date

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 5th June, 2006,
5,640,000 share options were granted to eligible participants
under the New Share Option Scheme, with an exercise period
from 5th June, 2007 to 4th June, 2016 and exercise price of
$2.90.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strength of the individual customer. In
order to effectively manage the credit risks associated with
trade debtors, credit evaluations of customers are

performed periodically.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 17.4% (2005: 19.3%) and 58.3%
(2005: 58.6%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest

customers respectively.

The Group's cash and bank deposits are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings. Management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet
its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

28
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DR B/BER 2T 25

)

REEEEREZ

BBRiE

WEERE - E=TTXFNARA - a8KS

ERE AR AREN I AR AT B T 7] 3R H85,640,000/%
B&DZ BEBRRHE - (TEHR T FAREE
—ZE—RFENAMEA - 17EEAE2.907T ©

S@MITA

58 RBES - FIRRINERY 2 BBRHEAE
BEEBZETREFESE - AEE 2 MBEERK
RELEDIREMR G A AR - ST -

’TA_ 4)<

ZISEIZk.,\ @ 22K B U AR I AL A R UL
R BERERBEENE  MzEEEELEZE

N =
PR TZEHyiél E */L °©

AEE—RABREPAT ZMRE M TEP
PRZEEH - RAEREEREBREERZE
SR - AEEEEHF GRS ZEEBR -

REER  AREEEREE FHBREERRBRET
ZIER EAEEZBEARARFEAAES 2K
5 R FEUBR TR EL A JEUGRARRE 217 .4% (=&
THF 19.3%)K%58.3% (ZTTAHF :
58.6%) °

REE 2 RE RRITERTIFHNE RIFEER
R TR - EREW I EREAIREH TS
TEEBITEME -

AEEREFEEMHERAZEBRIAEERERZ

BEEMEEREERR o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

29 £@WIEM@E)
(b) RBELER

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected REE 2 BUR R RRERTR KRR EST
liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient Z - RSB R R S REE R R
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from FES IR 2 EERAEMNEH R R ZRE
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in BeRE -

the short and longer term.

() Interest rate risk

(c) A=k

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest- MAEEBAZ EREERTEEHBENS -
bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their TRIEEHeHEERSHBENEERZE
effective interest rates at the balance sheet date and the periods BRFIE AR EFFE BB EER (WERE
in which they reprice or the maturity dates, if earlier. HER)
The Group AEH
2006 2005
Effective Effective
interest 1 year interest 1 year
rate Total  orless 1-2years 2-5years rate Total  orless 1-2years 2-5years
BB @t -FglR -ERE REE ERAE @ —EFghn -ERE  ZERF
% SWOFE  SOFR SONTR SOOFR % SIOFR SONTR SO0FE  Sa0FE
Repricing dates for REBRAETER
assets/(liabilities) &/ (B2
which reprice EXTER
before maturity A%
Cash at hank and in RITERR
hand ERRE 074 122862 122,862 - - 053 76919 76919 - -
Bank deposits R - - - - - 193 15618 15618 - -
Other financial asset EherAE 180 13922 13922 - - - - - - -
Bank loans BITER 561 (119,329) (119,329) - - 484 (168,845) (168,845) - -
17455 17,455 - - (76,308)  (76,308) - -
Maturity dates for REB A
assets/(liabilities) TRET
which do not Bz
reprice before 88/ (BB
maturity 3%A
Bank deposits /IR 392 380,943 358,175 - 22,768 203 440,169 417,360 - 22809
Obligations under HAREY
finance leases &% 550  (5708)  (2945)  (2,763) - 555 8943 (3235 (2945  (2763)
375235 355230 (2,763) 22,768 431226 414125 (2,945 20,046
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29 @I A )

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FIZEER: (&)
The Company AT
2006 2005
Effective Effective
interest 1 year interest 1 year
rate  Total  orless 1-2years 2-5years rate Total  orless 1-2years 2-5years
EEH=E A -Fdln -ERE CERE ERIE &t —FUR -EMF CEDE
% $000Fm  $000F7m  $000FT  §000F % % $000Fx  $000FT  $000FT  $'000FT

Repricing dates for assets  AEBAAE]
which reprice before B EEZET

maturity ERAH
Cashatbankandinhand ~ FHTEERERRS 006 1592 15962 - -0 BT 23107 - -
Bank deposits R - - - - - 193 15618 15618 - -
Other financial asset A eREE 180 1392 1392 - - - - - - -
29,884 29,884 - - 38725 38725 = =
Maturity dates for assets  WEIHAA
whichdonotreprice  YEEFEM
before maturity ZEEZHHA
Bank deposits /IR 411 326308 303,540 - 22,768 205 384537 361,728 - 22809
(d) Foreign currency risk (d) HMEE B
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through AEEEE 2 INER R EZ KRB WIAB B
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other BN EEETCEE - EEINERR
than the functional currency of the operations to which they ZEEFERFET - HERES - BEEREAR
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United SEZINERE - WENHEREEEHREZI
States dollars, Japanese yen and Sterling. Management D

monitors the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in the functional AEEZ BEEAUERERZ AN R
currency of the entity taking out the loan. Given this, BE- Bt EBBUYNEHAEE 2 EESHE
management does not expect that there will be any significant I E R 2 INE g2 o

currency risk associated with the Group’s borrowings.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

29
(e)

()

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31st March, 2006 and
2005 except as follows:

29
(e)

SRIT A (&)

NRE

AR ITAZ RAEEER _STRFR-F
ERE=A=+"HZAREBEXESEREZR
THLERRID

The Group and the Company

AEERAAT
2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
REE ARE REE ARE
$'000F $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Other financial asset HittepAaE
(2005: Bank deposits) (ZZ2RE  fIEN 13,922 13,922 15,618 13,869
In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 39, the BIRCE BT LR E395 2 REEX - @&
carrying value of the financial asset at 31st March, 2005 has ER_ZZERF=A=+—HZEHEEIES
not been restated and is therefore stated at cost (see note 2(f)). 5 - A e R EERKAETIBR(RHEE2()
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- BN A RFES AEERRES - BEREE
free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given these terms, it IR o ERAFEUHT B A B FRIE 2 RGO - #)
is not meaningful to disclose fair values. BEEARBEZERTAK -
Estimation of fair values (H DAREZMEE

The fair value of the long-term structured deposit contract (note
20) is estimated by discounted cash flow techniques. Estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.
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30 COMMITMENTS 30 A&iE
(@) At 31st March, 2006, the total future minimum lease (@ RZZTERF=ZA=+—H ' BETAF
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are B2 S EE BRERN 2 XERE[NHR
payable as follows: LEEIN R
The Group AEH
2006 2005
Factory Factory
machinery machinery
and and
Properties equipment Properties equipment
TS TRz
LES PET S E
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F7T $'000F 7T
Within 1 year —FR 24,888 735 26,513 839
After 1 year but within —¥f&
5 years BRER 22,178 858 17,051 1,608
After 5 years Tk 86 - 158 =
47,152 1,593 43,722 2,447
The Company AT
2006 2005
Factory Factory
machinery machinery
and and
Properties equipment Properties equipment
TH#AR TREs
L/ES &y mE PET
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Within 1 year —&R 876 - 764 -
After 1 year but within —{&
5 years BREEAR - - 92 -
876 - 856 -

The Group leases a number of properties and items of
factory machinery and equipment under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of one to eight years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are

renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEERBEKLHERAZEMEE TR
Hes R - ZEHEVF AP —FEN
F o WAAREBEINHEREDR  BR
FRIB R R EHEE - SREEHEL
TEEXAERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

30 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March, 2006
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

30 &IE(E)
() RZTBTARE=ZR=+—H  KEHBR
RAPBEZ RS EAREFBOT ¢

The Group The Company
r&E AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000F 7t $'000F 7T $'000F ¢ $'000F 7T
Contracted for RIS 11,520 4,401 249 -
Authorised but not %102
contracted for BRETH 71,557 66,364 40,457 27,347
89,077 70,765 40,706 27,347
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 REAEE
At 31st March, 2006, the Company had contingent (@) ARAR_ZTEXNF=ZA=+—HzZ=HE
liabilities in respect of the following: BEWT
2006 2005
$'000 7t $'000 F7t
Guarantees issued in respect FiRITRE THE AR
of facilities granted by banks REBAEE
to certain subsidiaries e 2 #ER 58,673 112,613

(b)

The Company has given undertakings to certain wholly-
owned subsidiaries to provide them with such financial
assistance as is necessary to maintain them as
going concerns.
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32

(a)

(b)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

Transactions with a related party

The Group has purchased milk products from a related party
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The unit price
of the milk products is pre-determined in an agreement entered
into between the Group and the related party, and will be
revised by reference to the prevailing market price of similar
products in Hong Kong and the PRC. Total purchases from the
related party amounted to $2,827,000 (2005: $3,054,000)
during the year. The amount due to the related party as at
31st March, 2006 amounted to $631,000 (2005: $436,000).

These transactions also constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, in respect of which the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note
9 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 10, is as follows:

32

EXBEALRS
BB RERABIREZ RS RAERIN -
RINATERBEALRS -

AREED

H-ZEBEALTZRS

REBEM —BEREARLME ([FE])
ZREATEE AR o ARG 2 BAER
fF— B EEZEEA LR 2 R TER
BE - WELEES R BRMEERZ MEED
AE - FAMZBABEATREZEREE
2,827,0007T (ZZFZ A4 : 3,054,0007T) ° A=
T RNEF=A=+—BENZEBEALZHER
631,0007T (ZZF R4 : 436,0007T) °

RIE EWRA - RS TR EHERER S
MARBIE BB T ERRAE14AT 2
FTE e

BEREEASZHE
BREBAEZ M (BEMEIMtAARRE
B2 FRIBIA R 10PF L R)E TS EHE B
ST

2006 2005

$'000 F it $'000 FiT

Short-term employee benefits EHEEET 27,158 19,629
Post-employment benefits BER &R A 743 655
Equity compensation benefits ARA R ER T 1,891 1,373
29,792 21,657

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

BAEEFTATE TR (RHEESD)) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

33 NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

(b)

On 5th June, 2006, 5,640,000 share options were granted
to eligible participants under the New Share Option
Scheme with exercise period from 5th June, 2007 to 4th
June, 2016 and exercise price of $2.90. Further details of
the New Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28
and the Report of the Directors.

After the balance sheet date the Directors proposed a
final dividend and a special dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 12.

34 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

(a)

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted or re-
classified as a result of the changes in accounting policies.
Further details are disclosed in note 2.

Certain land and buildings with an aggregate net book
value of $10,931,000, which were included in “Fixed
assets” in the 2004/2005 financial statements, have been
separately shown as “Investment property” on the face
of the consolidated balance sheet in these financial
statements. The Directors consider that the revised
presentation reflects more appropriately the nature of
these assets.
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(a)

RZZTANFAARA  AEK2EER
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I -
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35

(a)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Notes 17, 28 and 29(f) contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to defined benefit
retirement obligations, fair value of share options granted and
fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
respectively. Apart from the above, the Group believes the
following critical accounting policies also involve significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of the

financial statements:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
investment property

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment and investment property may not be
recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and investment property are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to level of sale volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of sale volume,
selling price and amount of operating costs.

85

CEREERE:

MiEE17 ~ 28 %29(N7 RlE B RN RERFIRIKE
£ EREBREZ ARERRAAENEER
BPNERERL EMEENA R B RRRIE
BRBERE o b EatEs) - ANEERERRE
TSR - AT BRREEEER IS REAHE R
flgt

M BERRBUARRENFZ

BB

HEERBERYE - BB RREARBREDEN
FREE R REEAI D - ZFEE R LR A 2R
Bl - MREERAEERIE(EEGTEDS
365k [BERE (EHTER - W12 - BB REREA
AR EMENREESTERIENER - UiHEE
AR EEREDEEREENAT - LEEMHR
SRR TARRHENEERD - ZFEEH
ETRERR - RER HER - BREESRER
Yo [m] $88 - AT R DS AR SR B M
EFhzEEE  ETEREER - BIRIEHE -
EEREERESEARTAELERAE - $:2
BEELNTAHRSREMREHIAE - NEE
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BIIMERE  ZFENERREBLEHEE B8R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZEE&TH)

35

(b)

(9]

(d)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
investment property

Property, plant and equipment and investment property are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual values.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group maintains an impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of the
debtors to make required payments. The Group bases the
estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of the trade
receivables balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis, expected
future consumption and management judgement. Based on
this review, write down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable values. However, actual consumption may be
different from estimation and profit or loss could be affected
by differences in this estimation.
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36 EEMEEEZE—ZZTREF
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT =A=t+—RHIEE2EEHE
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD 5 RAERHIERT ~ #ER K
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2006 RENBERE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEAMBHRENEZR - BASHMAE
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, ﬁbATE%ﬁﬁiggﬁf—F:ﬂ:ﬂ'—Et@ﬁﬁﬁ
new standards and interpretations which are not MIRARER - TV B EAM SRR EKANET -
yet effective for the accounting period ended 31st March, Fa] 8 ek o
2006 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.
Of these developments, the following relate to matters that RUEEFZERERFR - LT AR e AR B 2 R
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial WRBHECEE :
statements:
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
U B EE AR
Bz astHEEN
Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits — Actuarial gains and 1st January, 2006
losses, group plans and disclosures
(EAETEADE1958 2 E5] B EEH — BE K R EE —TERF-A—H
SRR EI MR R
Amendments, as a BB EC0052 7 (1BET) &5
consequence of the M A FERIMELERT ¢
Hong Kong Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance
2005, to:
— HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1st January, 2006
—(ERGFEADE 15 MsmR& 2 275 —ETRF-HA—H
— HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements 1st January, 2006
—(ERGFTERDE275 iRE MBS BT RER —ETRF-HA—H
— HKFRS 3 Business combinations 1st January, 2006

—(ERMBRELEA) E 3R et

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures

(ERM RS ERDFT5R SRMIA : RE

T F—H—H

1st January, 2007
—TZELF—H—H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&#&T%)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2006 (continued)

Amendment to HKAS 1
Capital disclosures
(EAETEAD 1R 2EFT B EER 2 25 - IRABER

Amendment to HKAS 39

EEAEEEE=-ZZ,
=A=t—Hitz2FE
_;g

Presentation of financial statements:

Financial instruments: Recognition and

F

-8

S
8 AR AEREMERT ~ FTERIR

RENEEXE (B

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
$LUT B ES AR
Bz EstHBAENR

1st January, 2007

—FTLF-A-A

1st January, 2006

measurement — Financial guarantee contracts

(BEGERANEI5R 2 EFT BHmER 227

BRNGE-FBRERED

A sl =

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment)
Ordinance 2005 came into effect on 1st December, 2005 and
would be first applicable to the Group’s financial statements
for the period beginning 1st April, 2006.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that while the adoption of
them may result in new or amended disclosures, it is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations

and financial position.
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Five Year Summary
AFHBHREE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAS#&TE)
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(restated) (E2%1]) (restated) (&%) (restated)(Z7%!]) (restated)(E%I))
$'000 ¥  $000 F7T $'000 ¥t $'000 F7¢ $'000 F7¢
Results S
Turnover T 2,520,409 2,379,955 2,269,422 2,228,227 2,192,156
Profit from operations £ | 233,775 197,032 151,252 175,352 148,006
Finance costs BB A (8,372) (9,042) (8,421) (9,617) (17,355)
Restructuring cost S - (24,782) - (1,213) (12,558)
Compensation for ZEBINZ
traffic accident EES - 765 1,464 (781) (3,567)
Profit on disposal of HEmE QA
an associate 2 - = = 2,484 -
Share of losses of FEAGEEE AR
associates ZE518 - - - (273) (3,308)
Profit before taxation BR AR A& A 225,403 163,973 144,295 165,952 111,218
Income tax FriS#i (40,378) (40,403) (35,019) (27,760) (32,953)
Profit for the year AR F 185,025 123,570 109,276 138,192 78,265
Attributable to: FEAG -
— Equity shareholders — NRAEIRHE
of the Company BAA 172,076 120,982 114,793 139,378 86,516
— Minority interests — DB R AERS 12,949 2,588 (5,517) (1,186) (8,251)
Profit for the year N S A 185,025 123,570 109,276 138,192 78,265
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Fixed assets BEE&EE 716,632 770,691 846,388 865,453 918,117
Bank deposits RITIER 22,768 38,427 93,397 100,000 -
Other non-current E b IERB
assets A= 18,341 3,212 1,875 1,461 11,593
Net current assets SFREEE 640,508 511,707 385,727 358,337 344,693
Total assets less B R
current liabilities MEAE 1,398,249 1,324,037 1,327,387 1,325,251 1,274,403
Non-current IERB
liabilities af& (89,315) (28,656) (36,067) (34,240) (60,051)
Net assets FEE 1,308,934 1,295,381 1,291,320 1,291,011 1,214,352
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& #5t#)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(restated) (&%) (restated)(E%!]) (restated) (&%) (restated) (E%I|)
$'000 ¥t $'000 F7t $'000 7t $'000 F7T $'000 F7T
Capital and reserves ERK#iE
Share capital &N 250,822 248,482 246,457 244,261 243,148
Reserves e 999,546 999,230 1,000,083 1,004,483 937,556
Total equity attributable /NG i1 g
to equity shareholders ESZEPN A
of the Company G 1,250,368 1,247,712 1,246,540 1,248,744 1,180,704
Minority interests DB R 58,566 47,669 44,780 42,267 33,648
Total equity i ey ] 1,308,934 1,295,381 1,291,320 1,291,011 1,214,352
Earnings per share BRRAF
— Basic — &R 17.2 cents fill 12.2 cents il 11.7 cents il 14.3 cents il 8.9 cents 1l
— Diluted — % 17.1 cents fill 12.1 cents il 11.6 cents fill 14.2 cents i 8.9 cents 1l
Notes: BFE
(i) The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs () BFEHERASERMEEI ] MEF] Z(BBTE
that are effective or available for early adoption for accounting REEA) - WR_TTHF—A— B HERRZ
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2005. Information on SR ER AT HIR RN - AR BERERZSE
the changes in accounting policies resulting from initial FR] REERT 2 (B ARV R E LD B 2 5T
application of these new and revised HKFRSs is provided in note REFPNER - EHRI MK T2 - —TTRF
2 to the financial statements. Figures for 2005 and 2006 have RZTTRNFEBREREZEN REEFT 2 BUR
been adjusted for these new and revised policies in accordance {EH A AR A BIEIEX ST R 2 o ka2
with the transitional provisions and as disclosed in note 2. Earlier BRENMSABRTAEEBHERE - BgptsE
years have only been restated to the extent that the new 5| RE 7 B o
accounting policies are adopted retrospectively as disclosed in
note 2.
(i) Pursuant to the revised (December 2001) Hong Kong Statement (i)  REBELET2CGEAETEN) CEZ—F+H)F

of Standard Accounting Practice No. 11 “Foreign currency
translation”, the Group changed its accounting policy for
translation of the results of foreign subsidiaries in 2003. Figures
for the year 2002 have not been adjusted for comparison
purposes as the effect of this change in accounting policy is

not material.
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